g1 uUUSs910 2545 ANNUAL REPORT 2008

o e B e ™= "o BB N OB B

PR USG5 915G AQUAMSASU 93nA (MBU)
RC CONSTRUCGTION "PUBLIC COMPANY IMITED

it —— .

-

/\@\ cfnnp,% e
e Ihl"
ir
3 01
UKAS %
S %%m_g‘ﬂ
Ll S )

VMG .



\SURY / CONTENT

WA \

10

14

16

34

a4

76

86

96

136

1 UDINUSBIUNSSUMS
Message from Chairman of the Board

SWDUATUNSSUMISASID OU
Audit Committee Report
Joyarliu

General Information

ACUNSSUMS
Board of Directors

doyanmomsibulae su
Financial Summary
anunU:MSUS:NOUSSD
Nature of Business

ODDEMI e
Risk Factors

IASD SWMSTioAU Ia:MsBAMS
Shareholding Structure and Management

SIEMSSHILAU
Connected Transactions

FoBUEIA:MSIINSANU:MSDUIi_:WaMSAITUDIU
Management Discussion and Analysis

pUMSBU

Financial Statements
SWeBEANEDUWUSHS WO LNDADUALIODUSIEIN
Details of the Company’s Management and Control Persons



71 UDWNUS:5IUNSSIUNS

witn udl 2549 1Asugfezacuszinalnalfezaasiavroiiovannlasin 7 4 savll 2548 wazdudlilgmian
Talusnuauomsifiooiiadusoussull 2549 USEM 70158 Aou RSAFW 910R (W) Ay NasoUsT uAN
“WSalumssiwoulul 2549 1Faenuide wisean ansn $resels wazrlslef qﬂﬁmﬁ“\nwitﬂmmﬁumﬁm
Tnefisnalasin 736.87 duum wazmls w8 50.82 duuwm Wniuantnandovas 44.67 uaz Sowas 65.51
pnasu Az dulusniiusene lﬁ'%‘u°‘V|§‘1Ji:‘[umﬁwumﬁt@ulﬁﬁﬁuﬂﬂawamaumniaaa“ 30 1w Sawaz 20
Wuszeznal 5 O nmsiivsdne 1Edeanzdewduusenannzidonlunaiandnnswdidaaloluiion
SUNAN 2548 UANIINLULET USEMY EulASUN9m9I9 auan 0t SGS i limssusadluszuuuImsnmn
ST 1S09001:2000 e duii3eudon uazilaTuil 23 nuamiug 2550 uddn+ li5umssavsuadudununs

Tuszauuiuiznfain 010w UKAS waz a1di NAC " msunissusaslusziulszind

Tasumsna $1uf 1A 15alud 2549 1ud Tasumsewislng 3 Tasumsfienanaind 2548 fa

+  Tnsums WS Recovery Boiler a1 515 a1wum é“mﬂu‘[m\amiLLiﬂ’lummuqiﬁﬁummﬁmﬁ"\ﬁ:wimnﬁu
uaznia S1lsenulugn mnsantlngad

o Tasunmsviefingassnenfioviaaunvaay MNUSEN Uan. 910R (M) ﬁuu%ﬁwLﬂué’%ummzh\mumnﬁﬁ]mi
9I0AN CPP-TRC Joint Venture §aATIASUNTSUSZH0H 2,200 AHUM HARITHEBNUTEN 269.35 Auum

+  TAS9MS1uYBfNgE55MeA Knock-out Drum Phase Il 91AUSEM Uan. iR (um1au) yamr1lAsunis
128.84 AU

wananuuedr Tl 2549 vsEmy Suldsulasunisnneviefingsssue1i Songkhla Transmission Pipeline
ANUIEN UAN. AR (NEw) adam‘[m\amiﬂi:mm 562.41 §1wun Gufimnnana Swuud Sanavd 2550 uas
fldsuimangalasuniana $1eszuu wiiiern i 2 Tasumsusse § Bedizadlasunisfonsueaussyn
HARIY 140.19 AuuUm

1wl 2550 uHW lﬁLEl%%JNﬁﬂzLﬁ?ﬂizgjaiﬂ‘i\jmﬁ\j’]u’lmﬁaﬁ”l’ﬂlﬁﬁ'imj”lﬁ SULARIINUNIBIUAN. Azt it
viatlos oinaifindn 1,000 Alawms Tuszes 4 - 5 Yewin uazms tu uuMsliinesssneni miueweus nia
NGV wazlasumisna S1lswnulugn wnssadinsiad Snvaralasens Uiznauﬁwammuﬁlﬁ%ﬂuﬂ 2549 ity
Auiunisad 8 1Asenis sq:lammuﬁﬂ\ﬂﬁm 921.24 UM vlRuS N ﬁuhiwqiﬁﬁma\m%ﬁm RIS

W3uLAUlRaENUAY LazAaliauraly

mMstasaiula wasUss uAx 15aTaeusENY udiusn s Sunasulu 2541 MaEaansdenluaanavannswe
uialalul 2548 audunausznaumsiivmalslud 2549 Tesuanu v UWEANGNAN vugiionu Wusinmg
g9fa  mdumsldn mihwenumasy udeduimsuazndnuugning TugiuzimunieauamznssunsusEny
YDUDUNITAGYNYINU wazzalianadasiuinugdny ﬂ:ﬁwmmimLﬁuqiﬁmﬁﬂmﬁmﬁ\mamuﬁﬁ@mmw

lrnmasguuazdanudasnsdy ta Semnaaduiulnzasuiuny fuag wazsaito Trussqumunenneld me

W G

%’]\ﬂWﬁ]L‘li ‘iﬁl%'l%%i/l

Iamssiuiiugsisaeglsel  uazidulumunansssanngua

U9281UNIINANG

USUN NoNSB AoU. ASABU D110 (UMBU)



Message from Chairman of the Board

Although in 2006, the economic condition of Thailand had been continuously slowdown from the last quarter of
2005 and there was the political uncertainty in the beginning of the year, TRC Construction Public Company Limited
was able to generate the highest operating income and profit ever. The total revenue stood at Baht 736.87 million and
the net profit stood at Baht 50.82 million, significantly increased form the previous year by 44.67% and 65.51%,
respectively. 2006 was also the first year that the Company received the tax privilege from being a listed company on
the Market for Alternative Investment (MAI). Such privilege reduced the corporate tax rate for the Company from 30%
to 20% for 5 years. In addition, The Company has been certified for ISO9001:2000 by SGS Institution and registered

with UKAS Institution for international accreditation and NAC Institution for domestic accreditation.

o The project completion in 2006 includes three major projects which had been continuously undertaken from 2005:
The Baht 515 million WS Recovery Boiler Project which was the first project for the Engineering System Installation

and Factory Construction for Petrochemical Business Unit.

o The Baht 2,200 million Wangnoi-Kaengkhoi natural gas transmission pipeline for PTT Plc. which the Company

subcontracted the project from CPP-TRC Joint Venture in the amount of Baht 269.35 million.
o The Baht 128.84 million Knock-out Drum Phase Il Project for PTT Plc.

In 2006, the Company received the contract for Songkhla Transmission Pipeline Project from PTT Plc. in the
amount of Baht 562.41 million. Such project is expected to be completed in mid 2007. In addition, the Company has
subcontracted the Water Transmission Network Construction Phase Il of Prasae Project of the Royal Irrigation

Department in the amount of Baht 140.19 million.

In 2007, the Company has prepared to bid for natural gas transmission pipeline projects from PTT Plc. as they
planed to have another 1,000 kilometers of transmission pipeline in the next 4-5 years and intended to support the use
of natural gas for automobile or NGV. PTT Plc. also has a number of projects to construct factories in Petrochemical
industry. The Company currently has eight projects on progress with the total value of Baht 921.24 million; therefore,

the Company is confident that its business growth can be continuously sustained.

Our business growth and our success since the establishment of the Company in 1998, our listing status in the
Market for Alternative Investment in 2005 and our operating performance achievement in 2006 were resulted from
the great supports of our precious clients, our shareholders, our business alliances, the financial institutions, the
government agencies as well as our management team and all employees. On behalf of the Company’s Board of
Directors, | would like to extend my gratitude to all of you and also | would like to assure that the Company will do only

the quality, high standard and safety business in order to develop the continuous and sustainable growth as stated in

W G

(Mrs. Paichit Rattananon)

our mission under the transparency and good corporate governance.

Chairman of the Board

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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Audit Committee Report

The Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting No. 3/2005 dated April 8, 2005 appointed the following three
independent directors to be members of the Audit Committee consisting of Assoc. Prof. Kamjorn Tatiyakavee, MD., as
the Chairman of the Audit Committee; Assoc. Prof. Pises Sethsathira and Assoc. Prof. Aekkachai Nittayagasetwat,
PH.D., FRM. as members of the Audit Committee; and the Internal Auditor as the Committee’s Secretary. The Audit

Committee has a two-year term.

The Audit Committee has the duties and responsibilities to ensure the accuracy and adequacy of the Company’s
financial reports, to ensure that the Company has suitable and efficient internal control system, to ensure the
Company’s compliance with the relevant laws and regulations, to consider, select, nominate, and recommend
remuneration of the Company’s auditor as well as to ensure the accuracy and completeness of the disclosure of
information of the Company in case that there is a connected transaction or transaction that may lead to conflict of

interest.

From January 1, 2006 to December 31, 2006, the Audit Committee held a meeting once every quarter or four times

in total. The meeting attendance was summarized below:

Members of the Audit Committee Number of Attendance/Total Number of Meetings (Times)
1. Assoc. Prof. Kamjorn Tatiyakavee, MD. 3/4
2. Assoc. Prof. Pises Sethsathira 4/4
3. Assoc. Prof. Aekkachai Nittayagasetwat, PH.D., FRM. 4/4

The Audit Committee carried out their duties in compliance with the rules and regulations of the Securities and

Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Such duties are summarized below:

1. The Audit Committee considered and reviewed the company's quarterly and yearly financial statements together
with the management and the independent auditor to ensure that those reports were appropriate and complied
with the general accepted accounting principles. The transactions with related parties were disclosed properly in
the notes of the financial statement. Also, the Audit Committee considered comments of independent auditor
regarding the internal control system of which the auditor had stated in the Management Letter of 2006 and

provided some recommendations to the Company.

2. The Audit Committee approved the internal audit plan, audited the practice of the Company's internal auditing unit
and provided some recommendations to the internal control department in order to achieve effective and efficient
outcomes that can be evaluated according to the plan for each and every departments of the Company. In
addition, the Audit Committee evaluated the sufficiency of the internal control system and deemed that the current

internal control system of the Company is sufficient and is able to protect the Company from management's fraud.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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3. The Audit Committee considered, reviewed and provided opinions on the necessity and the reasonableness of the
connected transactions between the Company and the related firms which could lead to some conflicts of interest
in accordance with the Company's connected transaction policy as well as the code of conduct for the good

corporate governance.

The Audit Committee agreed with the independent auditor that the financial statements of 2006 ended on
December 31, 2006, were provided appropriately and complied with the general accepted accounting principles with

sufficient information disclosure, and that the Company had a good and proper internal control system.

In addition, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board of Directors to propose Ernst & Young Office Limited
as the independent auditor to the 2007 Annual Ordinary General Shareholders' Meeting for approval, whereby Ms.
Rungnapa Lertsuwankul and Mr. Sophon Permisirivallop will be the Company's auditors for the fiscal year ended in

December 31, 2007.

/ﬁﬁ- @“i—-
&
Assoc. Prof. Kamjorn Tatiyakavee, MD.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee

February 23, 2007

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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General Information

Name

TRC Construction Public Company Limited (“the Company”)
Nature of Business
Engages in Pipeline System Construction, Engineering System Installation and Factory Construction in

Petrochemical Business and Engineering System Installation and Factory Construction in Biotechnology Business

Head Office Address

TP&T Building, 14" Floor, 1 Soi Vibhavadi Rangsit 19, Vibhavadi Rangsit Road, Chatuchak, Bangkok 10900
Regqistration Number

0107548000293

Home Page

http://www.trc-con.com
Telephone

(66) 0-2936-1660
Facsimile

(66) 0-2936-1670-1
Reqistered Capital

Baht 154,500,000
Paid-up Capital

Baht 150,000,000
Number of Issued Ordinary Shares

150,000,000 shares
Par Value

Baht 1

References
Registrar
Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited
Address
The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building , 4" 7" Floor, 62 Ratchadaphisek Road, Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110
Telephone
(66) 0-2229-2800
Facsimile
(66) 0-2359-1259

Auditor
Ernst & Young Office Limited
Address
Lake Ratchda Complex, 33" Floor, 193/136-37 Ratchadaphisek Road, Bangkok 10110
Telephone
(66) 0-2264-0777, (66) 0-2661-9190
Facsimile
(66) 0-2264-0789-90, (66) 0-2661-9192

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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Chairman
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Mr. Narindr Vangsrivadhanagul
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Director, Chairman of the Executive Committee and Acting Vice President,

Oversea Project Department
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Mr. Paitoon Goserakwong
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President and Acting Vice President, Finance and General Administration

Department
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Director
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Director
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Mr. Tan Teck Seng
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Director
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Assoc. Prof. Kamjorn Tatiyakavee, MD.
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Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee

SA. LAY L L 89
Assoc. Prof. Pises Sethsathira
AFINANT LACNIINNITIAFIN U

Director and Audit Committee

SA. A9. landey BRenNERTINT
Assoc. Prof. Aekkachai Nittayagasetwat, PH.D., FRM.
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Director and Audit Committee

TRC Construction Public Company Limited
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Finance Highlight

Unit : Million Baht

2006 2005 2004
Total Assets 408.80 446.97 72.09
Total Liabilities 161.83 235.82 23.80
Shareholders’ Equity 246.97 211.15 48.30
Service Income 733.30 5083.84 120.34
Management Service Income 0.00 0.00 3.80
Total Revenue 736.87 509.34 127.95
Gross Profit 115.34 79.62 27.58
Earning before Interest and Tax 671.69 465.06 115.26
Interest and Tax 14.35 13.58 4.41
Net Profit 50.82 30.70 8.28

Financial Ratio

2006 2005 2004
Gross Profit Margin 15.73% 15.80% 22.22%
Net Profit Margin 6.90% 6.08% 6.47%
Return on Equity 22.19% 23.67% 19.20%
Return on Total Assets 11.88% 11.83% 11.16%
Debt to Equity (Times) 0.66 1.12 0.49
Dividend Payout Ratio 41.32% 48.85% 217.28%"
Earnings per Share © (Baht) 0.34 0.22 0.33
Book Value per Share ® (Baht) 1.65 1.41 1.21
Closing Price (as at Dec 31) © (Baht/Share) 3.44 .55 none
Market Capitalization (Million Baht) 516.00 232.50 none

Dividend Payment total of Baht 18 million which part of it was used for the capital increase of Baht 20 million for capital restructuring preparation

for MAI listing
Par value of Baht 1 per share was used for 2004 for comparison purpose
The 1 St day trading of TRC’s shares in the MAI was December 22, 2005

TRC Construction

Public Company Limited



anuru:MsSUSs:NoUsSHD

Us:aanowibunlag suU

o
&

VS 712158 Ao msAdu SR (vnEu) (usEnY) dosudulud 2541 iieliuSnsiuie SuasiaRuszuy
Arnnssalununuszuuia wazlugn mnssutingiad u%ﬁwﬁﬂﬁuﬁuﬁwnmﬂmﬁam AU LLﬂ:lﬁﬁmﬁLﬁNV!u
aa'mm'aLﬁa\jLﬁa’liﬂ,umﬁﬂmHmﬁﬁuﬁuﬁqiﬁﬁ] uSEnfiyudiszudy 20 Awuwmilud 2542 40 duumilull 2547
100 amumluduaull 2548 Lazifauineun 2548 USENY Lﬁunu"lﬁﬁmgﬁaﬁmﬁu W 20 AWK uazision
SWAN 2548 15 uamaﬁmﬁmum’aﬂizmmﬁﬂuﬁwmu 30 s Tus1AL wazeiuas 1.70 um ynlrusene
fyudnszua o “WiausuAN 2548 WAL 150 §1uum wazusEne Iiiiuussvaavz douluaanamdnmswe
B 1o 1o WlaTuil 22 Sunan 2548 Vilusdnlasu vuslemimemBliulsifurraianavaniasa: 30 1Ju

Sapaz 20 1uszezinan 5 O (SusoLAT 2549 Al 2553

usuny fiusiingnugsia Aa usun 153 1auidede SR Adwusevivune Souazdmnssuaussive
“oAlUd glahunilugfaviulnnzacuiing auunt 2542 Tnedinlaidhantoruaasuieny duuidneday fa udn
Inelsmd Budidese 91in uazlafdmsusuidsumstionueasuisny andavusiuuidn 1san3 fad8uaa #iid

o a o o @ £

wn - uSdn A Tealds Beuien Tems Budidese didn Geviusesaz 100 Tawusdn 153 fiasduea

2o

8 drim Jagdu uddn 15615 fions8uoa A rin gt AulibuSEnY Sauaz 30

q

=

1wl 2548 ugEn lﬁﬁmﬁwmaqiﬁﬁuL‘v1mﬁmlﬁ?\ﬁ:uuﬁmnﬁmazda Srolsvnulugn mnssumwivalulad
#aw eAnwuaziamuitaduszmanuiiaziluaman uazuseny l§sunusumante 193 Tasunsive fe
- In99m15 WS Recovery Boiler Project 3iaf1 515 auum 3nusun Ineduizasiualsn 9in Foifiulasuns
fa %’W\ﬂi\jmuLLazﬁmﬁ\jqﬂﬂifﬁLmLm gazaeaiiinaInnszuIunsuasllaalanalunanisudaleh

wazidulasumsusnlumhegsiasummnianuszuuimnssauazia Sulswnulug wnssutinsiad
- Insuvmenuviafiasssuani Knock < out Drum Phase 1| :InUGHEM Uan. $1AR (Wn2w) 38A1126.5 Auum

- Ipsemsviafiesssnenidodas-unuaae nusdn Uan. SR (NrEw) saAlasusineusznm 2,100 S uum
AtulAsuN1siAuanTS9INAN CPP-TRC Joint Venture MElARTMNTINGaST UV fuudem law Tlnsidan
Iwilayl 15 (China Petroleum Pipeline Bureau : CPP) luusuneanzasuiun lavn Ulnuden AasUaLsn
(China National Petroleum Corporation : CNPC) é”mﬂunejuu%ﬁwwﬁwmﬁlwﬂﬁqm’luﬂi:mﬂ'ﬁu TRausEny

FUINZNUABIINAINTTINAT HARIUUTZN 269.35 AUUW

msiUaaunaon 1Angiut 2549
Tl 2549 vsdne IesunulufiaiisAavislununuszunvaiesssnend viuwuszuuadn | uazIwSUU

Armnssuuazna Slseewluan wnssutinsiad Tasemsi Awleun

o IWINTTULYEAEEIINENE ALFSUNUSIM Uan. $15R (1vnEin) 538 8 v YAFNTIN897.66 AuUM Usznau
me 4 Tasunsinel Fe

- TasumsnuviafingsssuenAfidonin vaa1 (Songkhla Transmission Pipeline Project) NAAW 336.77

AWUM UaT 6,182,000 duruaaa1s iy (Aniduyaduusiduluumuszanm 56241 Swum

(l#dmsuaniuauni 36.50 UvsamsUADaa1S NT))

USUN NoNSB AoU. ASABU D110 (UMBU)



Nature of Business

Background and Major Development in 2005

TRC Construction Public Company Limited was incorporated in 1998 with the registered capital of Baht 1 million
to provide service for transmission pipeline network construction and installation. The Company has continuously
increased its capital for business expansion. The Company's paid-up capital stood at Baht 20 million in 1999, Baht 40
million in 2004 and Baht 100 million in the beginning of 2005. Subsequently, in September 2005, the Company issued
another 20 millions shares to the existing shareholders through right offering and later in December 2005, the Company
offered its 30 million shares to public at Baht 1.70 per share. Consequently, the Company's paid-up capital as of the
end of December 2005 stood at Baht 150 million. The Company has become a listed company on the Market for
Alternative Investment since December 22, 2005; hence, the Company received tax privilege that reduced the

corporate tax rate from 30% to 20% for five consecutive years from 2006-2010.

The Company has Rotary Engineering Limited which is the leading construction and installation company of
Singapore as its business alliance since 1999. Previously, Thai Rotary Engineering Limited, a subsidiary of Rotary
Engineering Limited, was the Company's shareholder. Subsequently, the Company's shares were transferred to Rotary
Trel Pte Ltd., a Singaporean company thatis 100% owned by Rotary Engineering Limited. Currently, Rotary Trel Pte Ltd.
holds 30% of the Company's shares.

In 2005, the Company had established the Engineering System Installation and Factory Construction for
Biotechnology Business Unit in order to prepare for the future bidding projects. The Company had been contracted to
undertake three major projects as follows:

e  The Baht 515 million contract of WS Recovery Boiler Project for Thai Incinerate Service Co., Ltd. to construct and
install the boiler for alkaline substance from Cyclo-hexanone for steam production. This project was the first

project for the Engineering System Installation and Factory Construction for Petrochemical Business Unit.
o The Baht 126.5 million contract of Knock-out Drum Phase Il Project for PTT Plc.

e The Baht 2,100 million contract of Wangnoi-Kaengkhoi Natural Gas Transmission Pipeline Project for PTT Plc.
which the Company subcontracted the project from CPP-TRC Joint Venture in the amount of Baht 269.35 million.
CPP-TRC Joint Venture was established under the cooperation of China Petroleum Pipeline Bureau (CPP), a

subsidiary of the biggest energy company in China, China National Petroleum Corporation (CNPC).

Major Development in 2006
In 2006, the major contracts that the Company has signed included:
e The Natural Gas Transmission Pipeline Projects : The Company received eight Natural Gas Transmission pipeline
projects from PTT Plc. with the total value of Baht 897.66 million including
- The Songkhla Transmission Pipeline Project for Baht 336.77 million and US$ 6,182,000, or approximately
Baht 562.41 million in total value (Fx rate at Baht 36.50 per US$);

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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- The Construction of Gas Station and In-Line Block Valve Installation for Suvarnabhumi-Phayathai Project for

Baht 184 million;
- The NGV Transmission Pipeline Project at amphur Kaengkhoi, Saraburi province for Baht 62.71 million;
- The Construction and Installation of Gas Leakage Control Equipment for Baht 51.22 million.

The other four projects with the total value of Baht 36.32 million included the NGV Transmission Pipeline
Project, the Gas Transmission Pipeline Maintenance Project, the Slug Catcher Pit Expansion Project and

Right of Way Verification Mark for the 3rd Rayong-Bangpakong Transmission Pipeline Project.

Apart from the contracts received from PTT Plc., the Company also signed the contract with EGAT Co., Ltd. for

the Tie-in Natural Gas Transmission Pipeline for South Bangkok Power plant for the amount of Baht 21 million.

e The Other Piping Projects : The Company signed the contract to construct the Water Transmission Network, Phase
Il of Prasae Project, with Sahakarn Wisavakorn Co., Ltd. (the project owner is the Royal Irrigation Department) in
the amount of Baht 140.19 million. The Company also received the other contract from Thai Rotary Engineering

Limited to install the GT Air Cooling Piping System in the amount of Baht 13.59 million.

e The project for The Engineering System Installation and Factory Construction for Petrochemical Business Unit :
The Company signed the contract to construct a silicone manufacturing factory with GE Toshiba Silicones

(Thailand) Co., Ltd. in the total value of 15.20 million.

Nature of Business

TRC Construction Public Company Limited (“the Company” or "TRC”) is a contractor whose works engage in
pipeline system construction, and engineering system installation and factory construction in petrochemical industry.
The Company also set up new business unit, engineering system installation and factory construction in biotechnology
industry in order to bid for future projects. TRC may propose the bid by itself, coordinate with local/international partners

or form a joint venture or consortium to bid and manage the projects.

The nature of services provided by the Company can be divided into four main types as follows:
1. Engineering service is the service that the customers hire the Company to design the engineering process. This
service requires knowledge in engineering design regarding construction and installation in order to provide

effective service to customers.

2. Procurement service is the service that TRC procures the construction materials as per the customers' demands
for construction and installation as planned. TRC usually obtains this kind of service contract together with the

construction service contract.

3. Construction service is the construction and engineering system installation after the engineering and procurement

services are done.

4. Construction management service is the service to manage the construction projects according to the construction plans.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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The customers may sign the contract with the Company for one or many services. Also, the Company may

subcontract some parts of the services to sub-contractors who are specialized in such services, for example, the civil

work of a foundation for machine installation.

Currently, the Company has three business units including (i) the pipeline system construction, (ii) the engineering

system installation and factory construction for petrochemical business and (iii) the engineering system installation and

factory construction for biotechnology business. The latter unit was set up in 2005 with a purpose to enter the bid for

projects in the future.

1.

The Pipeline System Construction Unit

The Company's pipeline system construction unit mainly focuses on natural gas transmission pipeline system
construction for companies in energy and petrochemical industry owing to the Company's specialization in energy
and petrochemical sector. The Company may engage into a project either through bidding process or direct
hiring. Major customer for this business unit is PTT Plc. In the past, the Company mainly constructed the natural
gas distribution pipeline system. The bidding for the cross-country natural gas pipeline projects usually needs
support(s) from international partner(s). Wangnoi-Kaengkhoi Natural Gas Pipeline Project was the first project that
the Company bid for the cross-country natural gas pipeline project through the CPP-TRC Joint Venture, the
cooperation between China Petroleum Pipeline Bureau and the Company. In addition, the Company has entered
into the bids for other pipeline system projects such as pipeline system project for petrochemical raw materials,
water pipeline project, etc. The Company has gained a good reputation for the expertise in natural gas pipeline
system among the leading companies in petrochemical industry including PTT Plc., PTL Co-Generation Co., Ltd.,

Mabtaput Industrial Gas Co., Ltd., Amata Corporation Plc., and Thai Gypsum Products Plc. etc.

The Engineering System Installation and Factory Construction for Petrochemical Business Unit

This business unit engages in both engineering system installation and factory construction where most of the
services are to be provided for companies in petrochemical industry. At this stage, the Company may seek for
partner(s) or technology support(s) in order to enter into any project bids. Presently, the Company has a policy
to expand this business further. In 2005, the Company was granted the Baht 515 million contract of WS Recovery

Boiler Project.

The Engineering System Installation and Factory Construction for Biotechnology Business Unit

In 2005, the Company has set up a new business unit for engineering system installation and factory construction
for biotechnology industry as the Company has foreseen the opportunity of this business from the worldwide
growth of biotechnology uses in manufacturing, research and international trade. This business requires specific
know-how of which none of the companies in Thailand, including the Company, has expertise and experience in

this business before.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited



HONIINUSENY =N sAnwLazLRSNFLNaIEUSzNMIRsIANUWAzRgulnauIAR USEM Huin15195919mAN

TInfaanusEuvatesiefiaz %um\ﬂﬁmmmﬁmwwzmﬂumﬁmﬁWLﬁumi LBNSLENUSZNIASIATILAS

o o ! = & o

Fuiunsne Suazfnsuld Sniy uSdn 1smns wudiiess 9 Jeduusnannzifoululszwd ualls uwas

= YY) @

\dugfiadusavar 100 TuuFdn 153 fiardduea W78 Sin fhaviulnnosuidng fusz umsoilumssnidiuns

Y 9

| (%)

ra $1dlugsiaf wazinaz sy yuuSene TumsiduszmasiaeuUssLavilsd Tauussny api gafaitiiugsfia
fraveAuANERNziG WsnelidnTwanauwnuia Tnedduddunaiaianse uazddnsiaioiuln

Jwanan wdathelsimu vsdne doldlisunulumiegsfiatudatula

lasp Swseld

2547 2548 2549
Tasy Swnels s Sopar | wamin Sapaz | wnliu Soway
(@U) (@U) (EUM)

suldnngsiasuimanna eszuuvia 11291 8824 | 20716 4067 | 45037  62.34
iwEllﬁﬁmqiﬁﬁummﬁﬂﬁ\ﬁ:wﬁmnﬁu 7.43 5.81 294.08 57.74 269.71 36.61
wazna 519 msulsvoulugn wnssu
UlpsiAf
salfanmssudean” 0.00 0.00 2.60 0.51 4.22 0.57
walaangsiavan 120.34 9405 | 503.84 9892 | 733.30 99.52
ulEau® 7.61 5.95 5.50 1.08 3.54 0.48

INTlEv 127.95 509.34 736.84

vanewn ¥ elinnmssudeaulut 2549 Tiun salsnmsdaviussouseeniliiiu CPP-TRC Joint Venture (g91uazi8umliluinga s1ums
SEWIA)

@ sneilidn 1eun seldawsmsians aldnonide uazalddu o
vIURogs:HIwAe $WAELILTA duou

0b TWi 31 SWIIAN 2549 USUNY :ﬁmuﬁag’azmmmﬁda Swfdulala vy Swuivw 8 Tasun1s Iu

Hammuﬁ\ﬂ"u 986.73 A1UUM ﬂsdaﬁhmuﬁﬂ\ﬂﬁmﬁ\mmﬁmm 921.24 §1UM

jﬂnwu%Umeria Sfidvlula ‘wnau o 31 SUINAN 2549

dnmczay YR waeemil ssesaaav

falasoms  mssuoen® dadfnie zoousdy  wialaeussinos  TAsums

(@mum) (§mum)

wihegsiasuminna Sulununuszuuio

TAsumsneiafing EPC U3 Uan. 41AR (Nn1dw) 562.41 532.16 51.7.49-N.A.50
5938215 Songkhla ( “anduSuuminbu

Transmission - 336,770,000 UM LR

Pipeline Project 6,182,000 W3HEy M53)

USUN NoNSB AoU. ASABU D110 (UMBU)



In order to prepare for the future bidding projects, the Company has been negotiating with other companies for
their supports on specific know-how. Moreover, Rotary Engineering Limited, the 100% shareholder of Rotary Trel Pte
Ltd., the Company's major shareholder, is a listed company in Singapore who has expertise and experience in this
biotechnology business, therefore; the support from Rotary Engineering Limited is expected. The Company deemed
that this business shall provide a relatively high return owing to the need of specific know-how, the less competitors as
well as the high expected growth rate. However, the Company has yet to undertake any assignment related to this

business.

Revenue Structure

2004 2005 2006
Revenue Structure Million % Million % Million %

Baht Baht Baht

Revenue from Pipeline System Construction 112.91 88.24 207.16 40.67 459.37 62.34

Revenue from Engineering System 7.43 5.81 294.08 57.74 269.71 36.61
Installation & Factory Construction in

Petrochemical Business

Revenue from other Services'” 0.00 0.00 2.60 0.51 4.22 0.57
Total Revenue from Major Business 120.34 94.05 503.84 98.92 733.30 99.52
Other Income® 7.61 5.95 5.50 1.08 3.54 0.48

Total Revenue 127.95 509.34 100.00 736.84

Remarks : " Revenue from other services in 2006 included revenue from recruiting foreign workers for CPP-TRC Joint Venture (See details in
Connected Transactions).

2 . . . .
@ Other income included management fee, interest income and others.

Projects on Hand
As of December 31, 2006, the Company had eight projects on hand with the total value of Baht 986.73 million of
which Baht 921.24 million had yet to be realized.

Summary of projects on hand as of December 31, 2006

Project Value of

Project Names Type* Value Uncompleted  Project Period

(MB) Work (MB)

Pipeline System Engineering Unit

Songkhla EPRC PTT Plc. 562.41 532.16 Oct 06-Jul 07
Transmission - (The contract can be divided
Pipeline Project into Baht 336,770,000 and

US$ 6,182,000.)

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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Project Value of

Project Names Client Value Uncompleted  Project Period

(MB) Work (MB)

The Construction of EPRC PTT Plc. 185.00 165.95 Nov 06-Sep 07
Gas Station and the

Installation of In-Line

Block Valve for the

Suvarnabhumi-

Phayathai NGV

Transmission

Pipeline Project

The Water EPRC Sahakarn Wisavakorn Co., Ltd.  140.19 140.19 Aug 06-Jan 09

Transmission Pipeline,  E,P,C PTT Plc. 51.22 4518 Jun 06-Aug 07

Prasae Project

The construction and E,P,C PTT Plc. 18.64 18.64 Dec 06-Mar 07
nstallation of Leakage

Control Equipment

The Transmission

Pipeline Project for

LNG Project

The Modification Sale EP.C PTT Plc. 7.91 7.91 Dec 06-Feb 07
Gas from GSP#1 to

GSP#5

Additional Work for ER,C PTT Plc. 7.77 7.77 Nov 06-Mar 07

Slug Catcher Pit

Installation of GT Air E,P,C Thai Rotary Engineering 13.59 3.44 Aug 06-Mar 07
Cooling Piping Limited
System

Total 986.73 921.24

Engineering System Installation & Factory Construction in Petrochemical Business Unit

- None** -

Total 0.00 0.00

Grand Total 986.73 921.24

Remarks
E = Engineering, P = Procurement, C = Construction
* The WS Recover Boiler Project of Baht 515 million and the project received from GE Toshiba Silicones (Thailand) Co., Ltd. had
been completed in 2006; therefore, their project details are not shown as projects on hand.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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Industry Overview and Competition

Industry Overview

Natural Gas Pipeline/ Transmission Pipeline

The Transmission Pipeline system of PTT Plc. includes on-land transmission pipeline, undersea transmission
pipeline and distribution pipeline. The system links the natural gas resources in Thai Gulf, and the gas pipeline from the
Union of Myanmar's Yadana and Yadagun gas fields, which are located at the border of Thailand and the Union of

Myanmar, with the electricity generating companies, gas separation plants and industrial customers

For the investment and operation of transmission pipeline as well as the supplying and distributing of natural gas
business, presently, PTT Plc. is the sole purchaser and distributor of natural gas as well as the sole owner and
developer of the transmission pipeline network in the country. For distribution pipeline system, most of the investment
and the operation are also managed by PTT Plc. While PTT Natural Gas Distribution Co., Ltd., the joint venture company
which owned by PTT Plc., Tractebel S.A. and CPB Equity Co., Ltd., is responsible to distribute the natural gas to

customers in Bangkok and its vicinity.

Most of the Company's assignments are related to the distribution pipeline construction which is small-scale
natural gas pipeline that links the transmission pipe with the end users such as companies in the industrial estates and
the cross-country natural gas pipeline system construction. This large-scale of work normally requires international
partner(s) of which the Company has partnered with one large Chinese natural gas pipeline construction company,
China Petroleum Pipeline Bureau (CPP). CPP is a subsidiary of China National Petroleum Corporation (CNPC), the
biggest energy group in China. In 2005, the Company joined with CPP in CPP-TRC Joint Venture to construct and

manage Wangnoi-Kaengkhoi Natural Gas Pipeline Project for PTT Plc.

Engineering System Installation & Factory Construction in Petrochemical Business

In 2006, the petrochemical industry was drastically fluctuated where the petrochemical price had significantly
increased especially in the third quarter of 2006 compared to the beginning of the year. Such increase was a result of
the increase in crude oil price which was influenced by the political factor of the producing countries. The import values
of downstream, midstream and upstream products in 2006 stood at Baht 22,855 million, Baht 36,988 million and Baht
61,105 million, respectively. The import value of downstream product increased by 135% where the import values of
midstream and upstream products decreased by 22.56% and 5.27% compared to those of the previous year.
Meanwhile, the export values of downstream, midstream and upstream products in 2006 stood at Baht 27,694 million,
Baht 41,730 million and Baht 151,468 million, respectively. The export value of downstream product decreased by
24.41% where the export values of midstream and upstream products rose by 92.46% and 0.10%, respectively,

compared to those of the previous year.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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Competitive Strategy
The Company's competitive strategies and business policies can be summarized as follows:

(1)  Quality Control The Company has a policy to control the quality of work and to deliver the work punctually in order
to obtain customer's satisfactions.

(2) Reputations and Experiences of Engineers in Management Level The management of the Company has more
than 20 years of experience in construction business and has reputations for their knowledge and expertise.
Consequently, they are capable to review and oversee the works of engineering managers.

(3) Past Credentials The Company has gained some respects and reliabilities from the customers with the quality of
works and services in the past. Consequently, most of the customers do not only come back for the Company's
services but also recommend others for the Company.

(4) The Employee's Capabilities The Company has a large number of skilled employees who can provide efficient
services to customers. The Company also has a policy to maintain such quality of employees by providing them

consistent training courses.

Target Customers

For the natural gas construction business unit and the engineering system installation and factory construction for
petrochemical industry business unit, the target customers of the Company consist of government agencies and
private companies in energy and petrochemical businesses as well as companies whose manufacturing bases are
located at industrial estates that are accessible to distribution pipeline such as PTT Plc. and other companies in

Mabtaput Industrial Estate.

Industry Trend

Natural Gas Pipeline Construction

In 2006, Thailand's natural gas consumption stood at 3,236 million cubic feet per day, increased from the previous
year's consumption by 2.8%. 75% of the total natural gas consumption or 2.427 million cubic feet per day, 1.2%
increased from the previous year, was for electricity generation while 16% of the total natural gas consumption or 518
million cubic feet per day, 5.5% increased from the previous year, was used as raw materials for petrochemical and
other industries. The rest of 9% of the total consumption or 291 million cubic feet per day, 12.4% increased from the
previous year, was used as industrial fuel. The consumption of 2007 is expected to increase from that of 2006 by 7%
to 3,460 million cubic feet per day. Such increase is a consequence of the increase in domestic production from Phu
Hom field of 80-100 million cubic feet per day (the Phu Hom field started their operation in late 2006) as well as JDA
field which is expected to start their production in May 2007. The maximum capacity of JDA field is 200 million cubic
feet per day. In addition, the natural gas imported from the Union of Myanmar is expected to increase from 878 million

cubic feet per day in 2006 to 921 million cubic feet per day in 2007.

Thailand's natural gas consumption has expanded continuously. In 10 years time, the natural gas is expected to

be utilized among the sectors for the maximum economic value. The proportion of natural gas used in petrochemical

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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sector will increase to 22%, in transportation sector will be 10%, the industrial sector will be 13% and the rest of 55%
will be used for electricity generating sector. Moreover, PTT Plc. has a plan to construct another 1,000 kilometers of
distribution gas pipeline in order to distribute gas to various industries as to support and promote the use of natural gas
in substitute to oil in industrial sector. The project to promote the use of natural gas for automobile or NGV is still the
important policy that the government supports. The project aims to urge the use of alternative energy instead of
gasoline and diesel in transportation sector. Currently, there are approximately 20,000 cars that use NGV where the
number is anticipated to be increased to 500,000 cars in the near future. Those plans will play a significant role in the

increase in natural gas consumption in the future.

According to the Third Petrochemical Master Plan (2001-2011), the guideline for the 11 natural gas transmission
pipeline construction projects with the total value of Baht 157,102 million, a large number of natural gas pipeline
constructions will be undertaken which will be the good prospect for the Company especially for a large-scale project
as the Company has a strong international partner, China Petroleum Pipeline Bureau (CPP), a subsidiary of the biggest

energy company in China, China National Petroleum Corporation (CNPC).

Engineering System Installation and Factory Construction in Petrochemical Business

The petrochemical industry tends to slowdown in 2007 owing to the fluctuation of the world crude oil price that
directly impacts on the price of raw materials. Additionally, the demand for petrochemical products is also on the
downward trend as each country tends to reduce their imports and increase more investments in their own
petrochemical industry to utilize their domestic raw materials. Most of the petrochemical factories are operated at their
full capacities; therefore, some of them are upgrading their production lines and others are constructing new factories.
The complaint of air pollution caused by factories in Mabtaput Industrial Estate which was filed by the local residents
with the attempt to declare Mabtaput as a pollution control zone might have a significant impact on the expansion of

petrochemical industry Phase Il and other industries that planned to invest in Rayong province.
Product Resources

Capacity
Human Resource

The Company operates as a construction contractor where the number of workforce needed in any period of time
depends on the size of the project that the Company succeeds the bid; therefore, the Company has a policy to hire only
a sufficient number of staffs where the Company provides standby team including welding staffs in case of staff
insufficiency. Moreover, in case of overloaded works, the Company may hire temporary engineers and staffs including
welding staffs on a project basis. The Company has never faced any problems associated to the insufficiency of

workforce before.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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Source of Fund

The Company has a policy to finance each project with project finance facilities from financial institutions. In some
cases, the Company may request for the financial support(s) from the partner(s) to be used as the project's working
capital. Moreover, the IPO proceeds that the Company received in late 2005 can also be used as working capital for

projects that the Company has won the bid.

Sub-Contractors

Normally, the Company has no policy to subcontract its works especially for the natural gas pipeline construction
project. However, in some cases, the Company may need to subcontract some parts of the works that Company has
no expertise in such as foundation works. The Company selects subcontractors from their financial status, past
credentials as well as their readiness of workforce and machines & equipment. Moreover, the Company has a policy
to set the conditions including the acceptance of job, the guarantee, the inspection and the claims of the subcontract

to be similar with those of the main contract that the Company signed with the customers.

Machines & Equipment

The Company has a policy to purchase some of the machines & equipment that are used for basic works and to
rent other machines and equipment for projects on a case by case basis. However, the Company may purchase such
machines & equipment in case that there are a large number of abundant projects or it is difficult for the Company to

rent the equipment in the future.

Raw Materials
The raw materials used by the Company can be divided into two groups as follows:

1. Exclusive construction materials which are the major part of total raw materials used including pipe, valves, etc.
The project owners normally indicate the specific details of these materials, therefore; the Company will have to
buy them from domestic or international distributors or manufacturers. However, the project owners usually
specify more than one supplier and normally before the bid, the Company will negotiate and request such

suppliers to maintain the prices of the materials for a specific period of time.

2. Common construction materials which are the less part of the total raw materials used including wire, sandpaper,
etc. The Company normally purchases these materials domestically from suppliers who have long-term relation-

ship with the Company or other construction shops as appropriate.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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Risk Factors

Risk from relying on parent company, alliances and management team

Owing to the fact that credentials, size of capital, size of assets and specific know-how are required for most
of the project bids, the Company, in some cases, might have to form a joint venture with Rotary Engineering
Limited, which is the parent company of the major shareholder, affiliates or alliances in order to be qualified
to enter into a project bid. Therefore, the Company may not be able to bid for the project or may have to approach
another companies to form a joint venture in case that the parent company of the major shareholder, the affiliates
or the existing alliances refuse to bid for the project with the Company. In 2006 the Company joined with
Italian-Thai Development Plc. to bid for the construction of water pumping station, floodgate, water transmission
network and building for the first part of water distribution project from Chantaburi to reservoirs in Rayong under
the name of ITD-TRC Joint Venture. However, later in October 2006, the Royal Irrigation Department cancelled

such bid as the budget for the project had not been approved.

Not only depending on parent company, affiliates and alliances as described, the Company also relies on
the experience and expertise of the management team to specify the scope of work and the appropriate price for
each project. Moreover, the management's strong relationship with the customers also favors the Company in
project bidding. Therefore, a risk may incur for the company if it loses such group of management; in that it may

lose these advantages in project bidding in the future.

Risk from business expansion

The Company has expanded its engineering system installation and factory construction business for
petrochemical sector of which in 2005, the Company signed the Baht 515 million of contract for construction
service of WS Recovery Boiler. In addition, the business of pipeline system engineering unit was also expanding.
During 2005-2006, the Company undertook the projects that were larger than other projects that the Company has
ever done including the sub-contract work with the value of Baht 269.35 million from CPP-TRC Joint Venture in
Wangnoi-Kaengkhoi Natural Gas Pipeline Project which worth Baht 2,100 million. Additionally in 2006, The
Company signed a large project with PTT Plc. to construct the natural gas transmission pipeline for Songkhla
Transmission Pipeline Project with the amount to Baht 562.41 million. The Company also expanded into the
construction of water transmission project where the Company subcontracted the construction project of the
Water Transmission Pipeline Network Phase Il of The Royal Irrigation Department's Prasae Project from Sahakarn
Wisavakorn Co., Ltd. with the total value of Baht 140.19 million. In the near future, the Company is likely to bid for
an even larger project. The expansion into the petrochemical industry as well as undertaking larger projects, the
Company may face risks of working capital deficiency and lack of workforce. However, the Company's manage-
ment team has past experiences in petrochemical engineering projects as well as some large-scaled projects.
Also, before undertaking any projects, the management will dedicately assess the Company's capacity and

estimate the working capital for the projects; therefore, this risk in likely to be mitigated.
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Risk associated with the dependence on a few numbers of customers

The Company's main revenue was contributed to the natural gas pipeline system construction for energy
and petrochemical businesses, mostly from PTT Plc. or its related companies. In 2004, the Company's revenue
from PTT Plc. stood at Baht 38.04 million or equivalent to 31.61% of the Company's total revenue. This led to a risk
of revenue decrease in case that the Company does not have any natural gas pipeline system construction jobs
from this group. Since the Company expanded the business into the engineering system installation and factory
construction for petrochemical industry, the revenue from PTT Plc., including the revenue from subcontract job of
CPP-TRC Joint Venture, decreased to be 25.48% of the total revenue in 2005. However, PTT Plc. became the
largest customer of the Company again in 2006 with the revenue stood at 56.48% of the total revenue as most of
the projects undertaken in this year were related to the natural gas transmission pipeline. The major customer of

the Company may be different in each year owing to the nature of the Company's business.

Risk from inconstant revenue

The Company engages in the construction business of which most of the jobs are granted through the
bidding process. Therefore the revenue of the Company may fluctuate in case that there is any postponement of
the project or the Company fails to succeed the bid. However, the Company's revenue is likely to be consistent
owing to the growth of natural gas business and the fact that there are a few capability contractors in the natural
gas pipeline business. Additionally, the new business expansion of the engineering system installation and factory
construction for petrochemical industry, which the Company has already started the operation in 2005, and the
expansion into water transmission pipeline project will also enable the Company to maintain the constancy of

revenue.

Moreover, the Company has set up a new business unit of engineering system installation and factory
construction for biotechnology industry where the Company is under the process of preparation for entering into
the future project bid. Although, the Company has yet to start any projects with regard to this business, the

Company anticipates that this business will help mitigate the dependence on one industry in the future.

Risk associated with the project delay

The Company may face a risk of incremental expenses or project damage expense charged in case that
there is any delay on project. The delay of the projects may come from the construction by the Company's team
or the owner, such as a sudden change in construction and installation plan, a liquidity problem, etc. For the delay
caused by the owner, the Company may face a risk of incremental expenses such as wages and utilities
expenses. However, the Company can limit this risk by managing the workforce and expenses effectively in time
of delay. Also, the Company can negotiate for the compensation from the owner if possible. In the past, the

Company succeeded in negotiation with the project owner.

In case that the delay is caused by the Company, the risk of damage expenses claimed by the owner can

be expected. To protect this kind of risk, the project planning as well as the preparation of equipment, skilled staffs

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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and experienced engineers are required in order to complete the construction punctually. However, the Company

never has the record of project delay before.

Risk associated with the fluctuation of prices of construction materials

In the construction business, the fluctuation of construction material prices has a direct effect on the
construction cost as well as performance of the Company. In project bidding, the Company sets the fixed bidding
price from the quantities and prices of construction materials to be used for the project. If the prices of
construction materials change during the project, the Company will not be able to control the cost as per the initial
budget. Consequently, the Company has the risk from the changes in prices of construction materials that might
affect the performance of the Company. In order to mitigate that risk, the Company proposes the bid by using the
construction material prices, fixed by the major suppliers of all those significant costly materials such as machines,
gas pipes, valves, etc. for the specified period of time that usually covers the construction period. However, the
Company does not have the policy to stock any construction materials or to speculate the construction material's
prices. The Company is hardly affected by the changes of construction material prices as most of the Company's

projects have short period (less than a year); therefore, most of the prices can be controlled.

Risk from the dependence of suppliers and/or producers

The Company's main revenue, the construction services as well as the construction materials, are related to
the natural gas industry. Also, in practice, the construction contracts usually specify the Vendors List for each
project, therefore; the Company has to rely on a small number of suppliers and/or producers whose names are
on the Vendors List. If such suppliers and/or producers set higher prices for the Company than they do for the
competitors, the Company may not be able to win the bidding projects or may have lower gross profit margin
which will consequently affect performance. However, the project owners usually specify more than one supplier
and/or producer. Also, the Company has developed good relationships with suppliers and/or producers in the
natural gas industry whose names are usually on the vendors list. Therefore, the Company has some negotiation

power to mitigate the risk.

Risk from the fact that the major shareholder and related companies are engaged in
similar business

The Company's major shareholder, Rotary Trel Pte Ltd., a Singaporean firm who holds 30% of the Company's
paid-up shares, is 100% owned by Rotary Engineering Limited, a listed company in Singapore Stock Exchange.
Rotary Engineering Limited directly and indirectly holds 74% of Thai Rotary Engineering Limited which engages
in the engineering service and chemical tanks construction for petrochemical industry, similar to the Company.
Currently, the Company has two directors of Thai Rotary Engineering Limited, Mr. Loh Eng Kee and
Ms. Jongkolnee Tansuvan, and one management of Rotary Engineering Limited, Mr. Tan Teck Seng, representing

Rotary Engineering Limited on the Company's Board of Directors. Rotary Engineering Limited has interest and

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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10.

control over the operations of both companies, therefore; the conflicts of interest between the two companies are

likely to occur.

However, the Company and Thai Rotary Engineering Limited have expertise in different aspects. While the
Company is specialized in pipe and steel structures, Thai Rotary Engineering Limited is specialized in chemical
tanks. In addition, two directors of the Company who also serve Thai Rotary Engineering Limited have submitted
the declaration letter to the Board of Directors that they will not recommend or make any decision that could lead
to the conflict of interests. Rotary Engineering Limited has also submitted the letter indicated that it will support the
Company with the policy of “combine but not compete”. Furthermore, the Company also has other groups of
shareholders including Mrs. Paichit Rattananon, Mr. Paitoon Goserakwong and Mr. Narindr Vangsrivadhanagul,
who accumulatively hold 33.44% of the Company's total shares which could make them be able to balance the
power of authority. In 2006, Thai Rotary Engineering Limited granted the Company the GT Air Cooling Piping

System Project with the value of Baht 13.59 million.

Risk associated with the sufficiency of working capital

Construction business requires relatively high expenses varied by the project sizes, therefore; it is necessary
for the Company to have sufficient working capital for the projects on hand. The working capital will be used for
the bidding process and the preliminary phase of the construction as well as will be used as collateral for bank's
facilities such as letter of guarantee and/or other credit lines. In case that the Company has insufficient working
capital, the Company might not be able to acquire new projects nor to finish the projects on hand which means
that the Company may have to pay for damage claims as stated in each contracts. In the past, natural gas project
required approximately 30% of the total project value. In order to avoid this risk, the policy of conservative working
capital management has been followed effectively where the Company manages the payment period for all
expenses to be in line with the payment period of the project owner. Moreover, the Company has consistently

negotiated with financial institutions in order to ask for their supports of project financing.

Foreign exchange risk

As the Company normally imports raw materials for most of the projects, the Company may face the risk from
the fluctuation of foreign currency exchange. Normally, the bidding price of the Company already includes the
spread on foreign currency exchange in order to mitigate the risk. However, the high fluctuation of foreign
currency exchange can lead to the possibility that the bidding price is lower than costs and the Baht depreciation
against any currencies that the Company has opened positions can cause the adversely effects on the financial
status and the net profit of the Company. Therefore; the Company will enter into forward contract for all or part of

the construction materials cost quoted in foreign currency in order to prevent the risk from foreign exchange.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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11.

12.

Risk associated with the workforce

Experienced and skilled engineers are valuable assets of the Company. As project managers or project
engineers, their responsibilities are to ensure the completion of all the projects. Therefore, the Company may have
an operational risk of losing them. In order to mitigate this risk, the Company has employed an appropriate number
of engineers as permanent staffs. Also, the Company has encouraged the loyalty as well as built the family-liked
working environment. Additionally, consistency training programs are provided. As the Company has adopted the
policy to maintain the fixed costs at their lowest, the sufficient number of staffs has been hired. In some cases, the
Company may need to hire temporary staffs, including the welding staff, during the project loaded period.
Therefore, the Company may face the insufficiency of staff in case that the Company cannot find enough
temporary welding staffs to serve the workload. However, as the workload of the Company has been constant, the
Company has been able to maintain the temporary welding staffs. In addition, the Company also set up the
standby Team, including some welding staffs, for emergency cases such as in a time that the daily welding staff

cannot work. Consequently, the risk involved with temporary staffs should be reduced.

Risk from the customer's default

In case that the project owner and/or the counter party are unable to pay the construction fee, the Company's
liquidity and performance may be affected as the Company's main revenue is from construction contract.
However, most of the companies in natural gas industry are large and reputable. Thus, the risk of default should
be limited. In order to avoid this risk, the Company has a policy to acquire only the projects of financially strong

owners.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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Shareholding Structure and Management

Shareholders

Major shareholders as of January 4, 2007:

Name Number of Shares %
45,000,000 30.00
35,000,000 23.33
10,000,000 6.67

4,351,000 2.90
2,616,000 1.74
2,548,500 1.70
2,000,000 1.33
1,650,000 1.10
1,599,400 1.07
1,451,600 0.97
106,216,500 70.81
150,000,000 100.00

Remarks :

" Rotary Engineering Limited holds 100% shares of Rotary Trel Pte Ltd.
@ The group of Mrs. Paichit Rattananon consists of Mrs. Paichit Rattananon and KPK 1999 Co., Ltd. which is 99.99% owned by Mrs. Paichit
Rattananon.

TRC Construction Public Company Limited ‘
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Management

Organization Chart

Organization Chart as of December 31, 2006

The Board of Directors >—< The Audit Commitee
The Executive Commitee >

President

Y N )

__________ < Internal Audit

Engineering Marketing & _ Finance & General International Business
Operation Business Development Administration (Mr. Narindr
(Mr. James Jordan Fleming) (Mr. Peerasak Sukpenkaew) (Mr. Paitoon G'oserakwong : Vangsrivadhanagul :
temporary in charge) temporary in charge)

Marketing &
Engineering

. . ) General
Operation Accounting Finance
Administration

Remark : *  The Company has yet to appoint the head of Accounting, Finance and General Administration Department of which Mr. Paitoon

Goserakwong is temporarily in charge. Currently, Ms. Ounruen Sujarittham is a Manager of Finance Division and Ms. Rewadee Ardharn
is a Manager of Accounting Division.
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Management Structure
The Company has three committees consist of Board of Directors, Audit Committee and Executive Committee as

per the following details:

The Board of Directors

As of December 31, 2006, the Board of Directors consists of nine directors as follows:

1. Mrs. Paichit Rattananon Chairman - Representative of KPK 1999 Co., Ltd.
2. Mr. Narindr Vangsrivadhanagul* Director
3. Mr. Paitoon Goserakwong Director
4. Mr. Loh Eng Kee Director - Representative of Rotary Engineering Limited
5. Ms. Jongkolnee Tansuvan Director - Representative of Rotary Engineering Limited
6.  Mr. Tan Teck Seng Director - Representative of Rotary Engineering Limited
7. Assoc. Prof. Kamjorn Tatiyakavee, MD. Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee
8. Assoc. Prof. Pises Sethsathira Director and Audit Committee
9. Assoc. Prof. Aekkachai Nittayagasetwat, Director and Audit Committee

PH.D.,FRM.

Ms. Ounruen Sujarittham The Company's Secretary

Remark : * Mr. Narindr Vangsrivadhanagul has resigned since January 19, 2007.

Authorized Directors

Mrs. Paichit Rattananon, Mr. Narindr Vangsrivadhanagul, Mr. Paitoon Goserakwong, Mr. Loh Eng Kee and Ms.

Jongkolnee Tansuvan, two out of these five directors shall be able to sign with the Company's seal.

Scope of Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

1. To perform duties in accordance with laws, objectives, article of association as well as the resolutions of the
Shareholders' Meeting except for the transactions that shall be approved by the Shareholders' Meeting such as
the connected transaction, the acquisition and disposition of assets, the purchasing and selling of significant

assets as per the regulations of the SET or any other relevant authorities;

2. To appoint or change the authorized directors of the Company;

3. Tosetthe policies, strategies and directions for the Company except for the policies that require the Shareholders'
Meeting approval as well as to govern the management to effectively perform their duties according to such
policies, strategies and directions with a purpose of the shareholders' wealth and sustainable growth of the

Company;

4. To review and approve the significant transactions such as business plan, budget, large investment,

management's authorities and any other transactions required by laws;

5. To evaluate the management's performance as well as to determine their remunerations;

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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6. To be responsible for the operating result and the management performance with good intention and care;

7. To ensure that the Company has reliable accounting system, financial reports and auditing process as well as to
provide the measurement to assess the appropriateness of the internal control system and the efficiency and

effectiveness of internal auditing, risk management and financial reporting;

8. To ensure that the conflict of interests between the Company and related persons does not exist;

9.  To set the Company's rules and internal procedures;

10. To report the Board of Directors' responsibilities for financial reports together with external auditor's report in the
Company's annual report. Such Board of Directors' report shall include all the subjects as specified in the code

of conduct for directors of the listed company;

11. The Board of Directors shall be able to authorize the following transactions after they receive the Shareholders'
Meeting approval to do so. For the transactions that might lead to any conflicts of interests, the director who might
have such conflict of interest must not vote on that transaction.

a. The transactions that are required by law to receive the Shareholders' Meeting approval.
b.  The transactions that might lead to any conflict of interests as well as are required by laws and/or regulations

of the SET to receive the Shareholders' Meeting approval.

The transactions as specified below shall be approved by the Board of Directors' Meeting and the
Shareholders' Meeting with not less than three-fourth of the voting right of the shareholders who are present at the
meeting and have the right to vote.

(a) To sale or transfer the whole or any significant part of the Company;

(b) To purchase or acquire business of other companies or a private company;

(c) To engage in, amend or cancel the rental agreement of the whole or any significant business of the
Company, to assign others to manage the Company and to merge the Company with others with a purpose
of profit sharing;

(d) To amend the Company's memorandum of association;

(e) Toincrease, to decrease, to issue debentures, to merge and to liquidate the Company;

(f)  To perform any other activities those are required by securities laws or regulations of the SET to have the
approval of the Board of Directors' Meeting and the Shareholders' Meeting with such aforementioned voting

condition.

12. The Board of Directors shall appoint some of the directors as members of Executive Committee to perform the

works as assigned by the Board of Directors.

However, such appointment does not include the authority to approve the transactions that such directors and/

or their related persons have the conflict of interests with the Company or its subsidiary (if any). Also, the connected

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited _
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transactions and the acquisition and disposition of significant assets must be approved by the Shareholders' Meeting

as stated in the regulations of the SET.

The Audit Committee

As of December 31, 2006, the Audit Committee consists of three independent directors as follows:

1.
2.
3.

Assoc. Prof. Kamjorn Tatiyakavee, MD. Chairman of the Audit Committee
Assoc. Prof. Pises Sethsathira Audit Committee

Assoc. Prof. Aekkachai Nittayagasetwat, Audit Committee

PH.D., FRM.

Ms. Sarinthip Laomahamek Secretary to the Audit Committee

Scope of duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee

1.

To review and ensure that the disclosure of information in financial statement is accurate and adequate by
cooperating with the Company's external auditor and management who is responsible for the quarterly and
annually financial statement. Also, to recommend the external auditor to review or audit any transactions deemed

significant during the auditing period;

To review internal control system and internal audit system to ensure appropriateness and effectiveness by

cooperating with external auditor and internal auditors;

To review and ensure that the Company's operations are in compliance with the rules and regulations of the SEC

and the SET, as well as relevant laws;

To consider, select and nominate the external auditor and also propose the external auditor's remuneration to the
Board of Directors for the approval of the Shareholders' Meeting by considering the reputation, resources,

capacity as well as the experience of such external auditor;

To ensure the accuracy and completeness of the disclosure of connected transactions or transactions that may
lead to any conflict of interests. Also, to approve such transactions before propose them to the Board of Directors

and/or the Shareholders' Meeting;

To review the financial management and risk management policies as assigned by the Board of Directors and

agreed upon by the Audit Committee;

To prepare corporate governance report of the Audit Committee for disclosure in the Company's annual report.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee shall sign in such report; and

To perform any other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors and agreed upon by the Audit Committee.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited



Tumsufuinumuzauian wiil wazensuiisgau Tirnznssumsnsin aufidwnadnlitheuims guims

NIONUNIKABIUSEN Anendavansienu TrauLin %mﬂﬁ:qu 738 wan 1sfiviwinfedavnazinie

Mt AdzNIINMIUSEnAdwalunmsuAlaUfowuUaveauend uantinfizauamenIINNMTRTIA aulARINT

Fudunsafiv. NAIs

AU:NSSUMSUSIS

o &~ WM

b T 31 SUIIAN 2549 AKENSINAISUSHISATIUIU 5 YW AT

WIEWIWNT WA Tmuna* U9281NTINNTUINNG
WNLNIRAT SHWIUI NF9NANTUINNT
wielwysd In"s3nted NSINNITUSAS
WIELAN ~ 05UAn LHaNfy N9INNNSUINNS
wieRsAng aduum NSINNSUIMG

VNV - WIEwIWNT WA TG Tsianaananuiume LilaTuil 19 unSIAN 2550

FOULDA 9T LaTANSUARAaUZANAMANIINNITUSYNS ATt

1.

BHBLAZAMBAUlEUIY fiFnIg nagwes wazlAsy %mmﬁu%mimwﬁnlumimLﬁuqiﬁﬂﬂa\m%ﬁm Wl

oARABOLAT WU uuAa MwiAsEgiaua: nmzmsudvdilunan dial walianznssumsusdRasonaui
AVUALKUGSAY JUUSZNML UAZENANSUTINTAY 7] 29UTEn 1iaL waliinoknssumsusEnAsonansii
AIUANALANIALAUG AU N Iﬁl,ﬂulﬂmm‘[mmmqﬁﬁa wNngafa WazNALNSNNgIianAmzNITHNIg
uSdnlAauwiug,
wsenmsiEvih g ufeiugsisasuiune uaz “ueuLienfunmsgansue “wndavinlilsunds " nEiNavinan
Tduszlualufaniseavuieny nraanauwnsAMuATuAaKLAIEN91A59UNBY “TuaIAuna
ausiimslEnuduauilammualilusuuszinmseiedssad ﬁlﬁ%‘l_lmgﬁﬁﬁ]’lﬂﬂm:ﬂ‘ﬁﬁdﬂﬁu%ﬁﬂLLéJ’m%a
mufRnsIHMsUTEIlARNRawRElunannslium

Yy v

ALAWNIAYINGINTTHNINSLTUAY odumaiulunsdatnd nsliida msidn msdaniau

Y U

fuwida
adumslinanusyin $110 dmou mussin waznsdu g sanfunisiennouazaanzifannssu nansule |

ANIRnUSE wAtiaUslegvlunssiufianiseasusen ﬁ\iﬁa\ﬂm'mm'iaiﬁﬁﬁmnﬂm:nﬁumiu‘%ﬁwﬁm

ﬁmimmaﬁﬂﬁLLazmmuma\m%ﬁm wazn1sk wadeduiluuaszninunia wiauilunals=zdd ol wama

AKZNTINNITUSEN
NI IHANITAL I DIUTEN nnlmam wazlUSeuiBuRuIUUSZNoh LBL WaRBAMNIINNSUSEN

Fdm19d wrvsy Tende Yanaan BN AMvwAsnsIA13e Tadmnas1eia Usuluiluifon AnauLns

LWSulutd ﬂa\ﬂwﬁﬂmm:ﬁupju%mi ﬁ\jLLIﬂIﬁZﬁUQﬁ?ﬂ@ﬂoﬂulﬂﬂﬁm&lﬁﬂﬂ

USUN NoNSB AoU. ASABU D110 (UMBU)



In order to perform such duties and responsibilities, the Audit Committee has the power to request the cooperation

in forms of reports, opinions, documents from the management and staffs of the Company.

The Board of Directors has the right to adjust/ change the scope of duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee

as deemed necessary or appropriate.

The Executive Committee

a > WP

As of December 31, 2005, the Executive Committee consists of five members as follows:

Mr. Narindr Vangsrivadhanagul* Chairman of the Executive Committee
Mrs. Paichit Rattananon Member of Executive Committee
Mr. Paitoon Goserakwong Member of Executive Committee
Mr. James Jordan Fleming Member of Executive Committee
Mr. Peerasak Sukpenkaew Member of Executive Committee

Remark: * Mr. Narindr Vangsrivadhanagul has resigned since January 19, 2007.

Scope of duties and responsibilities of the Executive Committee

1.

To plan and set the policies, directions, strategies and major operational structure of the Company corresponding

to economic and competitive conditions and propose to the Board of Director for approval;

To set the business plan, budget and management authorities of the Company and propose to the Board of

Directors for approval;

To oversee the Company's operations to ensure that they are in compliance with the business policies, business

plan and strategies which have been approved by the Board of Directors;

To consider the engagement in business contracts and/or any other asset purchasing contracts in relation to the

business of the Company as well as to set the procedures and negotiation methods for such contracts;

To approve the capital expenditure as stated in the annual business plan which has been approved by the Board

of Directors;

To be responsible for any financial transactions with banks including account opening, lending, borrowing, providing
lending facilities, managing the collateral, pledging, mortgage and guarantee as well as selling, purchasing and

registering land deeds for the benefits of the Company as per the approval of the Board of Directors;

To consider profit and loss of the Company and to propose the interim or annual dividend and propose to the

Board of Directors;

To consider and compare the Company's quarter operating performance with the budget and propose to the

Board of Directors;

To employ, to appoint, to transfer, to discharge, to dismiss, to determine remuneration of, to give reward to and

to raise salaries, wages and bonus of employees in management level (from Assistant Vice President upwards);

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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10. To do any other duties in order to support the aforementioned duties or as delegated to do so by the Board of

Directors; and

11. To consider and report to the Board of Directors the transactions which are in questions of fraud or illegitimate or

irregular activities.

The Executive Committee is authorized to empower the management of the Company to approve any financial

transactions as appropriate.

However, the aforementioned approval must not be the approval of the transactions that enables any executive
directors or any empowered management to approve for transactions that might lead to a conflict of interest (as

specified by the regulations of the SEC and the SET) between such persons and the Company or the subsidiary (if any).

The Board of Directors is authorized to amend the scope of duties and responsibilities of the Executive Committee

as appropriate.

Management
As of December 31, 2006, the Company management consists of:
1. Mr. Paitoon Geserakwong President and Acting Vice President,

Finance and General Administration Department

2. Mr. Narindr Vangsrivadhanagul* Acting Vice President, Oversea Project Department

3. Mr. James Jordan Fleming Vice President, Engineering Marketing and Operation Department
4. Mr. Peerasak Sukpenkaew Vice President, Business Development Department

5. Mr. Sakda Tantivatthanakul Assistant Vice President, Engineering Marketing Division

6. Mr. Chaveng Reesrikitti Assistant Vice President, Operation Division

7. Ms. Ounruen Sujarittham Manager, Finance Division

8. Ms. Rewadee Ardhamn Manager, Accounting Division

Remark: * Mr. Narindr Vangsrivadhanagul has resigned since January 19, 2007.

Scope of duties and responsibilities of President

1. Tooversee and to approve day-to-day business operations as well as to be able to empower the management or

other employees to manage day-to-day business operation as appropriate;

2. To manage and control the general business operation of the Company;

3. To perform any duties that are delegated by the Board of Directors;

4. To employ, to appoint, to transfer, to discharge, to dismiss, to determine remuneration of, to give reward to and
to raise salaries, wages and bonus of employees in operational level as well as to appoint the employer's

representative for the Company's provident fund committee;

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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5. To approve and delegate the authority to pay for the purchase of assets for benefits of the Company as well as
to approve for the engagement in any financial activities as per the approved guidelines of the Board of Directors

and/or the Executive Committee;

6. Tobe able to create orders, procedures, announcements and memos with a purpose to ensure that the business
operations are in compliance with the policies, for the best interest of the Company and to keep order and

discipline of the Company;

7. To be able to act on behalf of the Company and to represent the Company in performing any related actions for

the best interest of the Company;

8.  To approve the appointment of relevant advisors as necessary under the budget that has been approved by the

Board of Directors; and

9. To perform any other duties as delegated by the Board of Directors and/or the Executive Committee.

President shall be directed by and directly report to the Executive Committee and shall perform duties in

compliance with the guidelines and regulations stated by the Executive Committee.

However, the President shall have no authority to perform anything in relation to the transactions that he/she and/
or the related parties might have a conflict of interests (as specified by the regulations of the SEC and the SET) with the

Company and/or the subsidiary (if any).

The Director Recruitment

As the Company has no Recruitment Committee, the nomination of directors is the responsibility of the Board of
Directors. The Board of Directors shall nominate suitable candidates who have relevant knowledge, capability and
experience and propose them to the Shareholders' Meeting for their approval as per the following procedure.

1. Each of the shareholders shall have one vote.

2. The shareholders shall vote for one person at a time.

3. Thevoting results of each candidate shall be ranked in order descending from the heist number of votes received
to the lowest, and shall be appointed as directors in that order until all of the director positions are filled. Where
the votes case for candidates in descending order are tied, which would otherwise cause the number of directors

to be exceeded, the Chairman of the Shareholders' Meeting shall vote.

One-third (1/3) of the directors shall resign on the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, however, in case that

the number of directors is not dividable by three, they shall retire by the number closest to one-third.

The directors resigning in the first and second years after the registration of the Company shall be selected by
drawing. In subsequent years, the director who has been in the post longest shall resign. A director who resigns under

this procedure may be re-elected.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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Criteria for Independent Directors' Nomination

Nomination Process of the Independent Directors

The Board of Directors shall preliminary consider suitable persons whose qualifications are in accordance with the

regulations of the SEC. Also, the candidates shall have useful knowledge and capability that are useful for the

Company. All of the candidates shall be appointed by the Shareholders' Meeting.

Qualifications of the Independent Director

1. Holding shares not more that five percent of the total shares that are eligible to vote of the Company, parent

company, subsidiary, affiliated company and related parties.

2. Being a director who is not a staff, an employee, an advisor or a controlling person of the Company, parent

company, subsidiary, affiliated company and related parties.

3. Being adirector who is not related to connected persons of the Company either by blood, by marriage or by legal

bindings.

4. Being a director who has no business relation with the Company, parent company, subsidiary, affiliated company

and related parties in the way that might lead to the inability to freely perform or express the opinion with regard

to the Company's operation.

Directors and Management's remunerations
Cash Remuneration

(A) Directors' Remuneration

Names 2006

Million Baht Type of Remuneration
Mrs. Paichit Rattananon 0.000 -
Mr. Narindr Vangsrivadhanagul 0.000 -
Mr. Paitoon Goserakwong 0.000 -
Mr. Loh Eng Kee 0.000 -
Ms. Jongkolnee Tansuvan 0.060 Meeting remuneration
Mr. Tan Teck Seng 0.015 Meeting remuneration
Assoc. Prof. Kamjorn Tatiyakavee, MD. 0.240 Monthly remuneration
Assoc. Prof. Pises Sethsathira 0.180 Monthly remuneration
Assoc. Prof Aekkachai Nittayagasetwat, PH.D., FRM 0.180 Monthly remuneration

Total 0.675

Remarks : 1. The Annual Ordinary General Shareholders' Meeting of 2006 has set the director's remuneration for the amount not exceeding

Baht 2 million.

2. Above remuneration still did not include bonus for the operating performance of 2006 which the Board of Directors' Meeting no. 2/
2007 dated February 28, 2007 passed the resolution to propose the bonus of Baht 100,000 per person for the non-executive directors

to the Annual Ordinary General Shareholders' Meeting of 2007.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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(B) Executive Directors' and Management's Remuneration

2005 2006
Number Remuneration Number Remuneration
of Persons (MB) of Persons (MB)
Management 7 13.03 Salary and 7 15.72 Salary and
Bonus Bonus

Remark: The remuneration of Finance Manager and Accounting Manager are excluded.

Other Remuneration
The Company has set up the provident fund in May 2005 of which the Company has joined TISCO Ruamtun | fund
which is under the management of Tisco Asset Management Co., Ltd. where three to seven percent of salary is paid

to the fund.

Corporate Governance
The Company's Board of Directors has set the Company's good corporate governance policy in accordance with

the Code of the Best Practices of the SET as per the following details.

1. Policy on Corporate Governance
The Company's Board of Director realizes the importance of good corporate governance in that it is essential
for the sustainable growth. Consequently, the policy on good corporate governance has been established to
emphasize on transparency and legitimacy of the Company's operation and the adequacy of information

disclosure as well as to ensure that the shareholders and the stakeholders are treated on an equitable basis.

2. Rights of the Shareholders

The Company has a policy to equitably facilitate all the shareholders for the Shareholders' Meeting
attendance, the information disclosure as well as the exercising of their voting rights. Moreover, the Company is
open for the shareholders to propose the agenda for the Shareholders' Meeting and to nominate the qualified
person to be a director before the Board of Directors' Meeting will conclude all the agenda for the Shareholders'
Meeting. The relevant information will be disclosed through the SET's ELCID system as well as through the
Company's website before the date of the Board of Directors' Meeting which will approve the Shareholders'
Meeting date. All of the invitation letter and the relevant information are to be sent to the shareholders for not less

than seven days in advance.

3. Rights of the Various Group of Stakeholders
The Company realizes the importance of those internal and external stakeholders as all their supports can
strengthen the Company's competitiveness and performance. Therefore; the Company has provided the policy on
the treatments of those various group of stakeholders in the code of business ethics of which the Company has

announced to all employees since June16, 2005.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited ‘
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10.

Shareholders' Meetings

The Company has a policy to facilitate the shareholders at the Shareholders' Meeting in a way that the
Company has allocated appropriate time and has equitably encouraged the shareholders to express their
opinions and raise questions. The Chairman of the meeting also provided the equal opportunities for the
shareholders to examine the Company's operation, to raise a question as well as to express their opinions where

such questions and comments will be recorded in the meeting's minutes.

Leadership and Vision

The Company's Board of Directors has participated in the decision on vision, strategies, goals, business plan
as well as budget of the Company and has ensured the efficient and effective performance of the management. The
Board of Directors has also overseen that the Executive Committee has managed the Company in accordance with
all policies of the Company. The Company's Executive Committee has the authorization to form a joint venture or
consortium of not exceeding Baht 500 million except for the transactions that might lead to a conflict of interests or

the one that requires the Shareholders' Meeting approval as per the regulations of the SEC and the SET.

Conflict of Interests

In order to avoid any conflict of interests, the Company has set the policy to govern the related transactions
where the persons who might have any conflict of interest are not eligible to participate in the approval of such
transactions. In addition, the treatments of the related/ connected transactions are strictly complied with the

regulations of the SET.

Business Ethics

The Company has provided the code of ethics for all directors, management and employees to be the
guidelines for truthful, honest and fair business operation as per the mission of the Company. The Company has
announced this code of ethics for all employees to follow since June 16, 2005 and has included this code of ethics

as part of the employee's work rules.

Balance of Power for Non-executive Directors

The Company's Board of Directors consists of nine directors including:

- Executive directors 3 persons
- Non-executive directors 3 persons
- Independent directors 3 persons

Aggregation or Segregation of Positions
The Company has separated the positions of the Chairman of the Board and President. Also, one-third

(1/3) of directors are independent directors which could be able to balance and review the management.

Remunerations for Directors and Management
The policy of directors' remuneration has been clearly and transparently set where the Company's
remuneration is in the same level as the industry average. The Shareholders' Meeting approved the director's

remuneration budget as well as bonus. The Company's remunerations for directors include monthly remuneration,

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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11.

12.

meeting remuneration and bonus. The directors who also serve as management will receive only management's
remuneration. In 2006, the Annual Ordinary General Shareholders' Meeting set the budget of Baht 2 million for
directors' remuneration but the actual amount that the Company paid was Baht 0.675 million (excluding bonus for
2006 operating performance which requires the resolution of the Annual Ordinary General Shareholders' Meeting
of 2007). According to the Company's policy, the management's remuneration is corresponding to their respon-

sibilities as well as the Company's performance.

Board of Directors' Meetings

The Company's Board of Directors is scheduled to at least one meeting for every three months. The
Chairman of the board is responsible to conclude all the meeting agenda and to provide opportunities for all
directors to express their opinions and discuss as well as to summarize all issues and conclusions of the meeting.
The secretary of the board has been appointed to support all the works of the invitation letter and the relevant
documents, to facilitate the meeting, to file all of the documents related to the meeting as well as to provide
recommendations on the appropriate procedures that should be taken in compliance with the relevant laws, rules

and regulations.

Names Presence in the Board of Directors' Meeting

2005
1. Mrs. Paichit Rattananon 7/10
2. Mr. Narindr Vangsrivadhanagul 4/10
3. Mr. Paitoon Goserakwong 13/13
4. Mr. Loh Eng Kee 11/13
5. Ms. Jongkolnee Tansuvan 13/13
6. Mr. Tan Teck Seng 3/10
7. Assoc. Prof. Kamjorn Tatiyakavee, MD. 10/10
8. Assoc. Prof. Pises Sethsathira 8/10
9. Assoc. Prof. Aekkachai Nittayagasetwat, PH.D., FRM 10/10

Sub Committees

The Company's Board of Directors has appointed two committees which their members are the Company's
directors including the Audit Committee and the Executive Committee. Those two committees are authorized to
request the management to clarify any issues or to submit a specific report as well as to appoint any external

advisor to provide a specific opinion as appropriate.

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent directors who are responsible for the appropriateness
of financial reports, the sufficiency of the internal control and risk management systems, the compliance with
relevant laws, rules and regulations, the selection, nomination and remuneration of external auditor as well as the
accuracy and adequacy of information disclosure with regard to the connected transactions or any other

transactions that might lead to conflicts of interests. Also, the Audit Committee is responsible to review the

TRC Construction Public Company Limited
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14.

15.

measures of risk management and provide some recommendations to the management as appropriate and to
provide some comments on the appointment, dismissal, plans, performance, budget and workforce of the internal
audit department. The Audit Committee shall submit the operational report to the Board of Director as well as to

disclose the corporate governance report in the Company's annual report.

Names Presence in the Audit Committee's Meeting
2005 2006
1. Assoc. Prof. Kamjorn Tatiyakavee, MD. 4/4 3/4
2. Assoc. Prof. Pises Sethsathira 3/4 4/4
3. Assoc. Prof. Aekkachai Nittayagasetwat, PH.D., FRM. 4/4 4/4

The Executive Committee

The Executive Committee consists of directors and management of the Company who are responsible for
day-to-day business operation as consented from the Board of Directors. This committee was appointed with the
purpose to facilitate the Company's operation where the Board of Directors has approved the scope of duties and

responsibilities of the Executive Committee.

Controlling System and Internal Audit

The Company has set up the Internal Audit Department to ensure the appropriateness and effectiveness of
the Company's operation and financial activities as well as to examine the Company's compliance of relevant laws
and regulations. In order for the internal audit department to be independent and enable to perform the work
efficiently, the Board of Directors has directed the internal audit department to report directly to and to be
evaluated by the Audit Committee. In addition, in 2005, the Company has set up the Quality Control Department
to implement the international standard of ISO9001:2000. The Company had been certified for ISO9001:2000

by SGS Instiute in 2006 and subsequently on February 23, 2007, the company received the international

accreditation from UKAS institute and the domestic accreditation from NAC institute.

Directors' Report

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the adequacy and accounting standards compliance
of the financial reports as well as the financial information. The Board of Directors appointed the Audit Committee,
consisting of independent directors, to oversee the quality of such reports as well as the internal control system.
The report of Audit Committee shall be submitted to the Board of Directors' Meeting and published in the

Company's annual report.

Relations with Investors

The Board of Directors has addressed the importance of accurate, complete, punctual, transparent and
equitable information disclosure. Therefore, it has appointed Mr. Paitoon Goserakwong, President, and Ms.
Ounruen Sujarittham, Finance Manager and Secretary to the Board of Directors, as investor relation officers who

are responsible for contacting with investors, shareholders, securities analysts, presses and other related parties.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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The Uses of Internal Information Control

The Board of Directors' Meeting No. 2/2005 held on May 19, 2005 has set the policy to govern the uses of

internal information as follows:

1.

All directors, management and employees of the Company are required to keep the confidentiality of all the

classified and/or internal information.

All directors, management and employees of the Company shall not disclose all the classified and/or internal

information to others for the benefits of themselves or others directly or indirectly, with or without remunerations.

All directors, management and employees of the Company shall neither buy or sell or transfer or obtain the
Company's securities using the classified and/or internal information of the Company nor enter into any transac-
tions using the classified and/or internal information of the Company that could directly or indirectly cause an

adverse effect to the Company.

The directors, management and employees of departments that are accessible to the internal information

shall avoid trading the Company's securities within 1 month prior to the public disclosure of financial statements.

This policy shall govern the transactions to be made by spouse and minor child of those directors,

management and employees. The violation of this policy shall be treated as a serious misconduct.

The directors and management of the Company shall prepare and disclose reports to the SEC on each person's
securities holding and the holding of securities by his/her spouse and minor children including changes in such

holdings as per the Securities and Exchange B.E. 2535, Section 59.

Employees

As of December 31, 2006, the Company has the total number of 358 staffs consisting of 99 permanent staffs and

259 temporary staffs as follows:

Department Number of Employees

1. Management 2
2. Marketing & Engineering and Operation 81
3. Business Development 1
4. Accounting, Finance and General Administration 13
5. Oversea 1
6. Internal Audit 1
7. Temporary staffs 259
Total 358

As of December 31, 2005, the Company has the total number of 264 staffs consisting of 60 permanent staffs and

204 temporary staffs.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited



ARBUUUAUNIY 131508 AulanumsaRalul

NI AIRUMN

ATRDUUNNINTT 1l 2548 1 2549

WMl gz 31.85 58.45
winguHnsm 19.01 47.39
I 50.86 105.84

Teazduaieniunamn 50uassEnaauusEn
ugdene Ansaenauyu seudeedndulisiaungenian U 2548 TaeuSdnt iiunawu Msa0lauedn
i 9wnu 1 feaanzideonudy Geagmeldinsuimsnweavuidmannswddanmsnaou 7 17 $in ludao

Jo8az 3 - 7 2aedns1Ande Tnelsninedwinaww 1soniueinidaiiawnsngian U 2548

UM IRAWIUARING
uFdne Tipu AAunSwennsyARa ﬁ\ja\jﬁniﬁﬁa}:éfa\miznaulﬂﬁ’mqﬂmniﬁﬁ fAnunwlumsufuson
UaEn Jurimnainguas \jﬁLﬁ'amiﬁmmqﬂmniLLa:miﬂnamu 2auUsENY fusaluil
1, Lﬁ'aLﬂumiﬁﬁumqﬂmﬂi
2. ieiuAanssalums S siussarieuaranslumbeense 1 Smivdodusattlums 1 g
MWIAIIWENUIAUUURNS AuwdnowssAuuims
3. ieadums SeinuasiddlalituninnunasiviruaRiiffeasAng
4. diafuma 3u s vsnwlumsuuRo
5. lafunazasnisliminennsang ) fiflagluavAnsadnogniasuazdue idlusuidsan 1a3avingingiu
NEWE" U wazdu
6. LﬁaLﬂumim?\ﬁﬂmwﬁwmniqﬁﬂa laﬂﬁl,ﬁmmi‘mmLLﬂauqﬂmni‘ﬁﬁmﬂNﬁﬂﬁNﬂ”Mﬂ@%ﬂﬁﬁﬂ\ﬂ%
Fuviu usune Fuld Avuauleune LﬁaLﬂuﬁugm’lumimiﬁwmqﬂmniLLazﬂnanN il
1. uSune 2:dhvan msausnatamang o mamnirNNSURRgay wazsunionuliiunine s Treuty
\u 2 szsususalus
1.1 Wi sz AUUGURNSuAZ S AU
USEMY dmausauiwiionenisluenumst FuvinwlunsufuRuu (Technical Skills) uaz
ANl FunTaEd ”Nﬁwé"lumaﬁwmmfmﬁuqmﬂaﬁu (Human Relations)
1.2 WUNIIWIZAUUINIS
U *{Tmauaaﬂ,ﬁmwNﬁﬁnmLLazmﬂﬁmlumﬁmmi (Managerial Technical Skills), vATA

MSUATUNILEZNSAR WA (Problems Solving And Decision Making)

2. U3 AR swinuwAnm uazgew Tususe o Mifendauiugsiszauuieie
3. USEVY dwAangsH e 510 WAUENW sewinuwiinuulueudng win visdeedlud vin Ty 56 9w

viouiesny - ialilinen 1WRA waz SuirwARARzauWENGIW AauZund

i:LﬁmuLLa:ﬁaﬁ\jﬁumﬁmmﬁﬁmu‘[mmHmiﬁwmqﬂmnauazmﬁﬂnamu wiiulumunfizauanznssunis

USHY

USUN NoNSB AoU. ASABU D110 (UMBU)



The employee's remuneration can be summarized as follows:

(Unit : Million Baht)

2005 2006

Permanent staffs 31.85 58.45
Temporary staffs 19.01 47.39
Total 50.86 105.84

Details of the Company's provident fund

The Company has set the provident fund in May 2005 of which the Company has joined TISCO Ruam Tun |

registered fund that is managed by Tisco Asset Management Co., Ltd. with the contributing proportion ranges between

3% - 7%. The first contribution started in July 2005.

Policy on Employee's Training

The Company realizes the importance of efficient human resource where the objectives of employee's training has

been set as follows:

1.
2.

I

To develop the effectiveness of employees;

To build relationships between employees from different departments as well as to build a relationship between

employees in operation level and management level;

To build the spirit as well as the good attitude towards the Company;

To enhance the operational efficiency;

To utilize the best efficiency of workforce, machines and other assets; and

To avoid the sufficiency of skilled employees.

Consequently, the Company has set the policy on Employee's Training as follows:

1.

The Company shall provide the appropriate training course corresponding to the duties, responsibilities and
positions of employees as follows:
1.1 Operation level employees and heads of departments
The training courses shall be focused on Technical skill as well as Human Relations skill.
1.2 Management level employees
The training courses shall be focused on Managerial Technical skill and Problems Solving and
Decision Making skills.
The Company shall organize a business trip for the employees to study and observe other businesses in
relation to the Company's business.
The Company shall organize activities to create the relationship between the employees such as New Year

party or a company outing trip in order to build the unity as well as the good attitude towards the Company.

The procedure for human resource management and employee's training shall be in compliance to the

approval of the Board of Directors.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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Labor Legal Dispute during the past three years

The Company has no labor legal dispute during the past three years which has adverse effect to the Company's
assets of more than 5% of the shareholders' equity as of December 31, 2006. Most of labor disputes that ever occurred
were related to the case that the Company had finished the assignment before the end of the contract period which led
to the advance termination of the employment contract for temporary workers. Therefore, those workers demanded for

compensations, however, the Company was able to negotiate with them without any lawsuits.

Internal Control

Refer to the Board of Directors' Meeting No. 2/2007 held on February 28, 2007, the Board of Directors has
evaluated the adequacy of the Company's 2006 internal control system according to the evaluation form for internal
control system that includes five aspects: organizational control and environment measure, risk management measure,
management control activity, information and communication system and monitoring. This evaluation was based on the
information received from the discussion with management, the documents prepared by the management as well as
the initial evaluation of the Audit Committee. The Board of Directors deemed that the Company has a sufficient internal
control system which includes the adequate internal control system for the transactions between the Company and the
major shareholders, directors, management and related parties. In addition, the Board of Directors agreed that the

current internal control is sufficient to prevent the unauthorized or fraudulent uses of the Company's assets.

The external auditor of the Company, Ernst & Young Office Limited, has stated one significant matter of the
internal control system in the Management Letter of 2006 that the Company should not issue a cash cheque. Every
issued cheque should be in form of account payee only. The Company has clarified to the Audit Committee that the
Company only issued the cash cheque for petty cash reimbursement. However, in order to comply with the auditor's
recommendation, the management and Audit Committee deemed that the cash cheque issuance for petty cash
reimbursement should be limited at Baht 20,000 per transaction of which the Audit Committee and the Board of

Directors have already acknowledged such action of the Company.

The Dividend Policy

The Company has a policy to pay approximately 40% of its net profit after tax and legal reserve as dividends.
However, the dividend payout may be changed according to future investment plans and any other actions that
deemed necessary and appropriate under the condition that those actions must be taken for the best interests of
shareholders such as the provision for loan repayment, the new investment in business expansion, or in the case of any
adverse change that might affect the Company's cash flow. The Board of Directors is authorized to consider the
dividend payment, however, the resolution of dividend payment must be proposed for the approval of Shareholders'
Meeting except for the case of interim dividend payment as the Board of Directors has the authority to approve before

informing the interim payment to the subsequent Shareholders' Meeting.

The Company paid dividend for 2005 operating performance at Baht 0.10 per share or equal to 48.85% of net

profit after tax and legal reserve which is higher than the policy to pay 40%.

The Board of Directors' Meeting No. 2/2007 held on February 28, 2007 passed the resolution to pay dividend for
2006 operating performance at Baht 0.13 per share or equivalent to 40.39% of the net profit after tax and legal reserve.
This dividend payout rate is higher that the Company's dividend policy. This resolution will be proposed for the approval

of the Annual Ordinary General Shareholders' Meeting 2007 on April 9, 2007. The payment date is set on May 8, 2007.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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Related Transactions

Summary of Related Transactions of TRC Construction Public Company Limited for 2006

Transaction Value

Related Parities Relationship Transaction Details (Million Baht) The necessity and reasonableness of the Transaction
2005 2006
Thai Rotary The Company’s former Income from project - = 10.142 The Company has subcontracted the GT Air Cooling Piping project
Engineering major shareholder (before | Installation of GT Air from Thai Rotary Engineering Limited. The Company decided to
Limited the group restructuring). Cooling Piping System take this project because it is situated in Saraburi province near the
Currently, the subsidiary other project that the Company subcontracted from CPP-TRC Joint
of the parent company of Venture. Moreover, the Baht 11.548 million of contract value was
the Company’s major quoted based on the normal profit margin and the Company also
shareholder. received another Baht 2.037 million of additional work.

Baht 10.142 million out of the total project value of Baht 13.585
million, or equivalent to 75% of completion, was recognized as
revenue for the year 2006. The project was initially expected to be
completed in December 2006 but the project owner was not able
to prepare the raw material on time, therefore, the schedule
has been postponed. The project is currently expected to be
completed in March 2007.

The Expenses associated As the Company’s target customers are natural gas users whose
with the office space in factories and manufacturing bases are located in the
Rayong province Eastern area such as Rayong, Chonburi, etc., itis necessary for the

Company to have an office and warehouse in Rayong province.
Therefore, the Company has rented the office space and
warehouse from Thai Rotary Engineering Limited in order to keep
the supplies and equipment and to save the operating cost. The 2

year and 1 month contract, from August 1, 2005 - August 31, 2007,

paiwi] Aundwory 2lgng uoudNIISUOD) Dy]

has been renewed from the old 2 year contract which was valid for
the period of August 1, 2003 - July 31, 2005. However, Thai Rotary
Engineering Limited has submitted the contract cancellation
letter to the Company informing that the contract period had been

shortened and would be end on March 1, 2007. The Company has

N}
N}

requested to end the contract on March 31, 2007.
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Related Parities

Relationship

Transaction Details

Transaction Value

The necessity and reasonableness of the Transaction

Thai Rotary
Engineering
Limited

(Continue)

U Electricity expense

The Audit Committee deemed that this transaction is reasonable as
the price was based on the evaluation of the electricity usage that
the Company used compared to the total monthly electricity usage

of Thai Rotary Engineering Limited.

U Rental expense - land

for warehouse

The Audit Committee deemed that this transaction is reasonable
and is in compliance with the mutually agreed contract (the
expense incurred in 2006 was unequal to that of 2005 because
Thai Rotary Engineering Limited has yet to bill the expense for

November and December 2006).

U Rental expense - 60
square meter of office

space

The Audit Committee deemed that this transaction is reasonable

and is in compliance with the mutually agreed contract.

U Telephone expense

The 2 phone numbers in consideration, 0 3869 5563-4, are
registered under the name of Thai Rotary Engineering Limited. Thai
Rotary Engineering Limited paid for this expense in advance and
billed the Company later on at the same amount billed to them by
TOT Plc. The Audit Committee deemed that this transaction is
reasonable as the expense was billed according to the invoice
issued by TOT Plc.

Machinery Rental expense

- Trailer, 25-ton Crane Truck

(Million Baht)
2005 2006
(0.091) (0.125)
(0.108) (0.090)
(0.072) (0.072)
(0.085) (0.079)
(0.043) (0.124)

Transportation is necessary for the Company as it needs to
transfer the machinery and equipment to project sites. However,
the Company has no equipment of its own; therefore, the Company
needs to outsource this service. Thai Rotary Engineering Limited
quoted the lowest price and had the capacity to provide this
service. The Audit Committee deemed that this transaction is
reasonable and is according to the agreed price based on the
condition of such equipment. The transaction is undertaken

occasionally as necessary.
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Related Parities

Relationship

Transaction Details

Transaction Value

(Million Baht)

2005

2006

The necessity and reasonableness of the Transaction

CPP-TRC

Joint Venture

A 10:90 Joint Venture between
the Company and China
Petroleum Pipeline Bureau
(CPP) which was established
in 2005 in order to bid for
Wangnoi-Kangkoi natural gas
pipeline project from PTT Plc.
As the Company did not
invest in or provide any
financial supports for the
Joint Venture, according to
the joint venture agreement,
the Company is not eligible
to share in the profit and loss
of this Joint Venture.

Mr. Paitoon Goserakwong, the
Company’s President, and/or
Miss Jongkolnee Tansuvan,
the Company’s director, are
the authorized persons of the

Joint Venture.

Income from project

subcontracting

45.524

223.829

This project subcontract was initially agreed by the Company and
CPP during the beginning stage of the bidding process and
was in accordance with the subcontract agreement between the
Company and CPP-TRC Joint Venture with the total amount of
Baht 269.35 million. The Audit Committee deemed that this
transaction is reasonable as it was corresponding to the intention
of the Company to form the Joint Venture. The Company has
undertaken the part of the project that it is capable to perform and
the profit margin of this subcontract is in a normal range. This

transaction is classified as a normal business of the Company.

Fee from providing work
permits for foreign workers

of CPP-TRC Joint Venture

9.997

3.101

In September 2005, CPP needed to bring their Chinese staffs to
perform their works for Wangnoi-Kangkoi project but they were
in an initial stage of setting up their company in Thailand. The
Company, therefore, employed their staffs and requested for the
work permits in order for those 37 staffs to be able to perform their
works. The Company charged CPP for all the expenses related to
those 37 staffs plus 3% of operating fee. The Audit Committee
considered that the intention of this transaction was to provide the
initial assistance to CPP-TRC Joint Venture and had no impact on
the Company’s operation or performance. Such transaction has
no longer existed since January 2005 and it is deemed to be

undertaken occasionally as appropriate.
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Related Parities

Relationship

Transaction Details

Transaction Value

(Million Baht)

2005

2006

The necessity and reasonableness of the Transaction

CPP-TRC
Joint Venture

(Continue)

Advance payment for

electricity at stockyard 1

0.031

During the initial stage of the Joint Venture registration, the
Company had applied for the electricity use permission from
Provincial Electricity Authority at Amphur Wangnoi under the
Company’s name where the Joint Venture would be responsible for
all the expenses incurred. However, as the receipt and the tax
invoice had been issued under the Company’s name, the Joint
Venture, therefore, had requested the Company to pay for all
associated expenses in advance and bill them later on. This
transaction ended in June 2005 and the Company has already
terminated the permission for electricity use for such site. The Audit
Committee deemed that this transaction is reasonable and has no
negative impact on the Company. The transaction is also deemed

to be undertaken occasionally as appropriate.

Rotary Pharma Pte

Ltd. (Singapore)

A Subsidiary of the parent
company of the Company'’s

major shareholder

Preparation expense for

project bidding

(0.918)

In March 2005, the Company entered into the bidding for the
construction of anti-AIDS virus manufacturing building from the
Government Pharmaceutical Organization where the Company
has no expertise on. Therefore, the Company requested for the
consultation from Rotary Pharma Pte Ltd. where Rotary Pharma
Pte Ltd. agreed to charge the Company the actual expenses
incurred during July 2003 to November 2004 after the completion
of the bidding process including travel expense, transportation
expense, and consultation expense. However, this project bidding
has been postponed; therefore, Rotary Pharma Pte Ltd. requested
the Company to pay for such expenses in advance. Rotary Pharma
Pte Ltd. sent the invoice to the Company in April 2005. The Audit
Committee considered that this transaction is necessary and
reasonable where the transaction is deemed to be undertaken

occasionally as appropriate.
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Procedures on the Approval of Connected Transactions
Board of Directors’ Meeting No. 2/2005 dated May 19, 2005 has set the procedures for undertaking connected
transactions in the future that all the connected transactions must be reviewed by the Audit Committee and/or the Board
of Directors who shall provide their opinions of the necessity and appropriateness of such transactions. Also, all prices
and conditions of such transactions must be compared with those of the transactions between the Company and the
outside parties to check that they are comparable with conditions of normal business practices. With a purpose of
flexibility in operation, the Board of Directors approved the Company to be able to enter into any connected
transactions that are normal business practices such as a construction service or a subcontracting work for the amount
of not more than Baht 30 million under the condition that all the prices and other conditions of such transaction must
be comparable to the normal business conditions. For the best interest of the Company, the meetings of the Audit
Committee and/or the Board of Directors must acknowledge and provide the opinion upon such transactions.
Furthermore, the following connected transactions must be reviewed and approved by the meetings of the Audit
Committee and/or the Board of Directors before undertaking them:
U The connected transactions that are neither normal business practice nor supportive to the normal business of the
Company;
U The connected transactions whose prices and conditions are different from normal prices and conditions that the
Company normally undertakes with outside parties.
U The connected transactions that are normal and supportive to the normal business of the Company under normal

prices and other conditions whose value exceeds Baht 30 million.

The conflicted persons (as specified in the Company’s article of association and the regulations of the SEC and the SET)

must not perform any duties in relation to the transactions that they are related or might have conflicts of interests.

The Board of Directors shall govern the Company’s operation to ensure that they are in compliance with the securities
laws and the regulations of the SET including the regulation with regard to the information disclosure of the Connected
Transaction and the Acquisition and Dispositions of assets of the Company or the subsidiary (if any). Such compliance shall

include the compliance of the accounting standard specified by the Accountant Association.

In case that the Audit Committee and/or the Board of Directors have no expertise in any of the connected transaction,
the Company shall appoint independent expert or the Company’s auditor to provide their opinion on such transaction for
the Audit Committee and/or the Board of Directors and/or the shareholders as appropriate. The Company shall disclose the

details of related transactions in the notes to financial statements that are audited by the auditor of the Company.

Policies and the Future Connected transactions

The Company anticipates that there will be some connected transactions in the future that are related to the construction
and management services which will be undertaken as a hirer or a contractor. At present, the Company has no policy to
request for any financial support from or to give any supports to the related companies. All those connected transactions

will be undertaken strictly in compliance with the above procedures on the approval of connected transactions.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Overview

The Company’s major business is related to the construction and installation of engineering system where
most of the works are in form of projects. The key success factors of this business include the bidding opportunity,
the contract awarded, and the efficiency project supervision which leads to the predetermined cost and punctual

completion.

2006 was one of the most successful years for the Company as the Company was able to post the highest
operating result ever in terms of both revenue and profit. The Company’s total revenue stood at Baht 736.9 million
increased by 44.7% from Baht 509.3 million in 2005. 72.4% of the revenue was accounted for the revenue from
the 3 large projects which were continually recognized from the previous year including the WS Recovery Boiler
Project, the Wangnoi-Kaengkhoi Natural Gas Transmission Pipeline Project and the Knock-out Drum Phase I
Natural Gas Transmission Pipeline Project. The Company'’s net profit stood at Baht 50.8 million increased 65.5%

from the net profit of Baht 30.7 million in the pervious year.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had eight projects on hand with the total value of Baht 921.2 million.
All of the projects on hand are responsible for by The Pipeline System Construction Unit.. Most of the projects on hand
are expected to be completed and fully recognized in 2007, while the Water Transmission Network Construction

Phase Il of Prasae Project with the total value of Baht 140.2 million is expected to be completed in early 2009.

Operating Performance
Revenue

97-99% of the Company’s revenue was contributed to service income and management service income.
In 2006, most of the Company’s projects were natural gas transmission pipeline projects and the Company has
yet to be awarded with large projects for the Engineering System Installation and Factory Construction for
Petrochemical Business Unit. Additionally, the WS Recover Boiler Project which had been continually operated
from the previous year was completed and fully recognized in 2006. Consequently, 62% of the Company’s total
revenue in 2006 was contributed to the revenue from the Pipeline System Construction Unit while 58% of the total

revenue in the previous year was from the WS Recovery Boiler Project.

Apart from the two large natural gas transmission pipeline projects which had been continuously accounted
from the previous year and was fully recognized in 2006, the Wangnoi-Kaengkhoi Project and the Knock-out Drum
Phase Il Project, the Company was awarded several projects from PTT Plc. The selected projects from PTT Plc. include

- Songkhla Transmission Pipeline Project with the total value of Baht 562.4 million;

- The Construction of Gas Station and the Installation of In-Line Block Valve for the Suvarnabhumi-Payathai

NGV Transmission Pipeline Project with the total value of Baht 185.0 million.

Moreover, the Company has expanded into the water transmission project where the Company
subcontracted the Water Transmission Network Phase Il of Prasae Project which the Royal Irrigation Department

is the project owner with the total value of Baht 140.2 million.

Cost of Service and Administrative Expenses

The major costs of service of the Company are raw materials and wages. In 2006, the Company’s cost of

service stood at Baht 617.9 million, increased by Baht 193.7 million or 45.7% from that of the year 2005. Such
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increase was corresponding with the increase in the service income. The administrative expenses increased from
Baht 40.8 million to Baht 53.7 million or equivalent to a growth rate of 31.6%. The proportion of the administrative
expenses to the total revenue stood at 7.3%, decreased from that of the previous year which stood at 8.0%. Such
decrease was owing to the significant growth of revenue while the Company was able to efficiently manage the
administrative expenses. Moreover, some of the administrative expenses were not in proportion to the revenue
increase such as the expenses associated with employee as the Company had increased its workforce to support

the business expansion since 2005.

Profit
- Gross Profit and Operating Profit
In 2006, the Company’s gross profit stood at Baht 115.3 million or equivalent to the gross profit margin
of 15.7%. Such margin was in line with that of the year 2005 of 15.8% and was lower than that of the year
2004 which stood at 22.2%. The decrease in gross profit margin was due to the fact that the Company had
entered into the construction of petrochemical factory business for the first time in 2005 where the Company
was awarded with the WS Recovery Boiler Project from Thai Incinerate Service Co., Ltd. with the total value
of Baht 515.0 million. The profit margin for such business is set at a lower rate than that of the existing

business of the Company.

Operating profit in 2006 recorded at Baht 61.6 million or equivalent to the operating profit margin of

8.4%. Such margin was higher than that of previous year which stood at Baht 38.8 million or 7.7%

- Net Profit
In 2006, the Company’s net profit stood at Baht 50.8 million or equivalent to the net profit margin of
6.9%. Such margin was higher than that of the previous year which stood at 6.0% owing the corporate tax
privilege that the Company received from listing its shares in the MAI market in 2005. The Company was
awarded with the tax privilege that reduces the corporate tax for the Company from 30% to 20% for 5 years

starting from 2006 to 2010.

Return of Equity
The Company paid dividend from the operating performance of 2005 at Baht 0.10 per share or equivalent

to the payout ratio of 51.43%. For the operating performance of 2006, the Company's Board of Directors’ Meeting
No. 2/2007 which was held on February 28, 2007 passed the resolution to pay dividend at Baht 0.13 per share
or equivalent to the payout ratio of 40.39%. Such payout ratio is higher than the Company’s dividend policy which
the Company is obligated to pay 40% of the net profit after tax and legal reserve. The Annual Ordinary General
Shareholders’ Meeting for the year 2007 will be held on April 9, 2007 to consider the dividend payment and the
dividend payment date is set on May 8, 2007.

Financial Status
Assets

As of December 31, 2006, the Company’s total assets stood at Baht 408.8 million, decreased by Baht 38.2
million or 8.5% from that of 2005. Cash and cash equivalent was the current asset that declined the most where
it drastically dropped from Baht 230.3 million at the end of 2005 to Baht 39.5 million at the end of 2006. The
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significant amount of cash and cash equivalent in 2005 was a result of 3 major fund raisings of which the total
proceed of Baht 132.2 million was used as the working capital. The first fund raising of Baht 60.0 million was
through the request for fully paid up the existing shares, the second fund raising of Baht 22.9 million was through
the right offering and the third fund raising of Baht 49.3 million was through the initial public offering (IPO) which

the Company had offer 30 million shares to public at Baht 1.7 per share.

The non current assets increased from Baht 43.1 million to Baht 84.2 million where the increased assets
included:

- Pledged deposits at financial institutions which increased from Baht 32.2 million to Baht 51.4 million. The
increase in the pledged deposits was owing to the fact that the Company had been approved for more
commercial loans from financial institution including a working capital and project finance facilities; there-
fore, the Company was obligated to pledge more deposits in proportion to such financial facilities specified

by the financial institutions.

- Land, Building and Equipment that rose from Baht 9.9 million to Baht 31.6 million from the investment in land
and building at Tumbol Phutaluang, Amphur Sattaheeb, Chonburi province in order to build the Fabrication
Shop with the total value of Baht 12 million. Such increase in Land, Building and Equipment was also owing
to the investment in vehicles which the Company had bought under the hire purchase and financial lease
contracts with the total amount of Baht 8.3 million as well as the Baht 4.1 million of investment in tools and

equipment and the Baht 2.3 million of investment in furniture, fixtures and office equipment.

Net Accounts Receivable

The Company’s net accounts receivable as of the end of 2006 increased by Baht 57.8 million or 62.6% along
with the growth of revenue to Baht 150.1 million. In 2006, the Company was able to manage its account receivable
efficiently as can be seen from the aging of receivable outstanding. The current receivable was accounted for
43.3% while the rest of 56.7% was the receivables that had been overdue for less than 3 months. At the end of

2006, the Company had no outstanding on the accounts receivable of related companies.

Unbilled Receivable

Normally, the revenue from construction project is recognized by the percentage of completion method;
therefore, the Company shall have some of the revenue that have been recognized under the accounting standard
but have not yet to be billed under the conditions set forth in the contracts. Most of the contracts shall specify the
milestone collection where the Company shall complete the jobs under each milestone before sending the invoice
and after that; the unbilled receivable shall become the accounts receivable. The Company’s unbilled receivable
at the end of 2006 stood at Baht 108.1 million, increased from Baht 70.9 million at the end of 2005.

Liabilities and Source of Fund

The major Company’s liabilities consist of accounts payable, unbilled payable, advance received from
customers under construction contracts and accrued expenses. In 2006, the Company’s total liabilities
decreased from Baht 233.5 million at the end of the previous year to Baht 157.3 million, or equivalent to a 31.4%
decrease. Such decrease in total liabilities was due to the decrease in accounts payable from Baht 146.3 million
to Baht 62.2 million and the decrease in the advance received from the related parties under construction contract

which dropped from Baht 41.1 million at the end of 2005 to Baht 4.9 million at the end of 2006. The advance

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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received from the other construction contract, on the other hand, increased to Baht 29.5 million. The hire purchase

and financial lease payables increased from the investment in new vehicles.

The Company uses working capital as a major source of fund where the funds needed for accounts
receivable and other current assets are supported by the credit terms received from accounts payable. Moreover,
the Company also uses the shareholder’s funding as well as the financial facilities from financial institutions. Most
of the Company'’s financial facilities from financial institutions are in forms of short term project finance which the
Company pledged its fixed deposits as collaterals. With the strong financial background and the listing status of
the Company, an increasing numbers of financial facilities from financial institutions have been proposed to the
Company and the Company is able to negotiate for competitive fee, interest rate and the proportion of fixed

deposits to be pledged.

The Company’s debt to equity ratio as of the end of 2006 stood at a relatively low rate of 0.7 time, decreased from
1.1 times at the end of 2005.

Liquidity
(Unit : Million Baht)

2006 2005

Net Cash Flows from (used in) Operating Activities (140.5) 87.5
Net Cash Flows used in Investing Activities (40.2) (17.9)
Net Cash Flows from (used in) Financing Activities (10.1) 146.2
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalent (190.8) 215.8
Beginning Cash and Cash Equivalent 230.3 14.5
Ending Cash and Cash Equivalent 39.5 230.3

In 2006, the net cash used for operating activities stood at Baht 140.5 million owing to the increases in
accounts receivable, unbilled receivable and retention deposits as well as the decrease in the advance received
from CPP-TRC Joint Venture according to the Wangnoi-Kaengkhoi contract. Such changes in those current assets

were corresponding to the increases in new projects as well as the progress of each project.

The net cash used of Baht 40.2 million for investing activities was a result of the increase in pledged deposits

as per the increase in financial facilities as well as the investment on land, building and equipment.

The Company paid dividend for the operating performance of 2005 in the amount of Baht 15 million in 2006.
The Company’s debt collection period for the year 2006 stood at 60 days higher than 40 days of collection period
in 2005. Such increase in collection period was owing to the increase in accounts receivable. The payment period
for 2006 stood at 61 days. The Company had better liquidity as shown by the liquidity ratio of 2.1 times, increased
from 1.7 times of the previous year. Such increase was a consequence of the increase in accounts receivable
which was resulted from more construction contracts. The quick ratio stood at 1.2 times, declined from 1.4 times
of the prior year. However, as the Company’s business normally has some of the revenue recognized before
submitting the invoice to the clients where the recognized revenues which have not yet been due as per contracts
have been shown under “unbilled receivable”. Consequently, the accounts receivable figure used to calculate the
quick ratio was relatively too low. When taking into consideration the unbilled receivable, it turned out that the

Company’s quick ratio stood at 1.9 times in 2006, increased from 1.7 times of the previous year.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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Report of Independent Auditor

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of TRC Construction Public Company Limited

| have audited the balance sheet of TRC Construction Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2006, and
the related statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management as to their correctness and the
completeness of the presentation. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
my audit. The financial statements of TRC Construction Public Company Limited for the year ended 31 December
2005, as presented herein for comparative purposes, were audited by another auditor of our firm who, under her

report dated 23 February 2006, expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.

| conducted my audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that | plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. | believe

that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of TRC Construction Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2006, the results of its operations, and

cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

(ot

Sophon Permsirivallop
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3182
Ernst & Young Office Limited
Bangkok: 23 February 2007

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade accounts receivable
Related parties
Unrelated parties
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts
Trade accounts receivable, net
Unbilled receivable
Accounts receivable - retention from related party
Accounts receivable - retention from unrelated parties
Construction in progress
Other current assets
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Restricted bank deposits
Property, plant and equipment, net
Software, net
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

The accompanying

TRC Construction Public Company Limited
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BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)

TRC CONSTRUCTION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2006 AND 2005

(Unit: Baht)
Note 2006 2005
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Short-term loans from financial institutions 10 19,929,600 14,245,331
Trade accounts payable
Related parties 4 92,094 9,301,881
Unrelated parties 62,064,423 137,037,069
Total trade accounts payable 62,156,517 146,338,950
Unbilled payable 3,869,599 6,767,965
Advance received from related parties under 4,6 4,985,692 41,086,970
construction contracts
Advances received from customers under 6 29,531,449 -
construction contracts
Current portion of liabilities under hire purchase 11 2,608,683 835,356
and financial lease agreements
Suspense output VAT 9,818,492 6,011,384
VAT payable 5,418,125 6,365,101
Accrued expenses 12,578,244 9,640,509
Allowance for warranty expense 2,204,750 820,500
Other current liabilities 4,178,869 1,426,806
Total current liabilities 157,280,020 233,538,872
Non-current liabilities
Liabilities under hire purchase and financial lease
agreements - net of current portion 11 4,549,656 2,280,289
Total non-current liabilities 4,549,656 2,280,289
TOTAL LIABILITIES 161,829,676 235,819,161

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)

Shareholders’ equity
Share capital
Registered
154,500,000 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each
Issued and fully paid-up
150,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each
Share premium
Retained earnings
Appropriated - statutory reserve
Unappropriated
Total shareholders’ equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

TRC Construction Public Company Limited
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INCOME STATEMENTS

Revenues
Service income
Interest income
Other income
Total revenues
Expenses
Cost of services
Administrative expenses
Total expenses
Income before interest expense and corporate income tax
Interest expenses
Corporate income tax

Net income for the year

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

Net income

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (shares)

The accompanying

TRC Construction Public Company Limited
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

TRC CONSTRUCTION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006 AND 2005

(Unit: Baht)
2006 2005
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income 50,818,721 30,703,843
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by (paid from) operating activities: -
Depreciation and amortisation 4,827,909 2,663,465
Gain on sales of equipment (21,956) (967,614)
Unrealised (gain) on exchange (123,594) -
Income from operating activities before changes in operating
assets and liabilities 55,501,080 32,399,694
Operating assets (increase) decrease
Trade accounts receivable (57,804,357) (74,479,061)
Unbilled receivable (87,237,900) (58,220,219)
Accounts receivable - retention (9,351,200) (3,650,184)
Construction in progress (569,334) 1,942,573
Other current assets (6,541,850) (5,269,304)
Other non-current assets (493,284) (55,501)
Operating liabilities increase (decrease)
Trade accounts payable and unbilled payable (87,371,313) 139,092,513
Advances received under construction contracts (6,569,829) 39,488,146
Suspense output VAT 3,807,108 5,181,593
Accrued expenses 2,937,735 4,604,597
Other current liabilities 3,189,337 6,505,089
Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities (140,503,807) 87,539,936

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited




puns:l 1BU A (¢iO)

VUM 718158 Pau ASATY I0R (N1Y)
gunszlk l§u f (Ra)

"wSul AU 31 Sunan 2549 uaz 2548

(WWIE: M)
2549 2548
N3zl 1% AINAINITNAWYI:
LBuHINEUIANSTIRNST AU RN Y (19,073,444) (15,424,223)
) ﬂ'%fumnmﬁa‘hmmqﬂnﬁni 376,894 967,617
16w Aedaiifin mmauazqﬂniﬂi (21,507,167) (3,451,610)
\u a vldlulufanssuaoyu (40,203,717)  (17,908,216)
Nl 1% AINAINITNIANILTU:
Lﬁuﬁﬁmzﬂ: N ontumSSuLaE 5,684,269 14,245,330
Ifsudhazamiuiiisndin - 60,000,000
W% AU qwﬁmnmﬂﬁmgu - 72,155,000
Peiniuua (15,000,000) -
Wi wAN uiEndauas “wEnsiuanay (786,760) (210,902)
u a vdan (Ell) Aanssadamidn (10,102,491) 146,189,428
151 ALAZSIIMSTEUVINGY ALfaEn (ARaN) (190,810,015) 215,821,148
W Auazsemaisuribs aaul 230,304,164 14,483,016
W Auazsemaieusibie auaied 39,494,149 230,304,164
ﬁaganszu Bu AdnmeRNGN:
W ARSIt mdy
Aanidudny 2,103,695 44,974
MEGulafifyaRa 18,503,266 13,402,212
emsfildleiiu ausznause
aAnlddnelunsaanyiuindu mAnyaAk (ManuLg 12) - 1,785,000
da unsnenmsvin ‘i edeuas “wanEdinisiu 4,829,454 3,115,646
ga " unswdomstredudlagnsziiu 414,108 .

wummaﬂaznawumitﬁmﬂu IUNTIRBIIUNISLS T

»
O

USUN NoNSB AoU. ASABU D110 (UMBU)



INCOME STATEMENTS (Continued)

TRC CONSTRUCTION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
INCOME STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006 AND 2005

(Unit: Baht)
2006 2005
Cash flows from investing activities
Increase in restricted bank deposits (19,073,444) (15,424,223)
Proceeds from sales of equipment 376,894 967,617
Cash paid for purchase of property, plant and equipment (21,507,167) (3,451,610)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (40,208,717) (17,908,216)
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase in short-term loans from financial institutions 5,684,269 14,245,330
Additional share subscription received - 60,000,000
Proceeds from increase in share capital - 72,155,000
Dividend paid (15,000,000) -
Decrease in liabilities under hire purchase and financial lease agreements (786,760) (210,902)
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities (10,102,491) 146,189,428
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (190,810,015) 215,821,148
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 230,304,164 14,483,016
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 39,494,149 230,304,164
Supplemental cash flows information:
Cash paid during the year for
Interest expenses 2,103,695 44 974
Corporate income tax 18,503,266 13,402,212
Non-cash transactions consist of
Share issued costs were offset against share premium (Note 12) - 1,785,000
Purchase of assets under hire purchase and financial lease
agreements 4,829,454 3,115,646

Purchase of fixed assets that has yet been paid 414,108 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

TRC CONSTRUCTION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006 AND 2005

(Unit: Baht)
Retained earnings
Issued and fully Appropriated
paid-up Share -statutory
Note share capital premium reserve Unappropriated Total

Balance as at 31 December 2004 40,000,000 - 1,150,000 7,145,828 48,295,828
Call-up the additional share subscription = 12 60,000,000 - - - 60,000,000
Increase in paid-up share capital 12 50,000,000 22,155,000 - - 72,155,000
Net income for the year - - - 30,703,843 30,703,843
Statutory reserve 13 - - 1,635,192 (1,5635,192) -
Balance as at 31 December 2005 150,000,000 22,155,000 2,685,192 36,314,479 211,154,671
Net income for the year - - - 50,818,721 50,818,721
Statutory reserve 13 - - 2,540,936 (2,540,936) -
Dividend paid 19 - - - (15,000,000) (15,000,000)
Balance as at 31 December 2006 150,000,000 22,155,000 5,226,128 69,592,264 246,973,392

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRC CONSTRUCTION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006 AND 2005

GENERAL INFORMATION
TRC Construction Public Company Limited (“The Company”) is a public company incorporated and domiciled
in Thailand. The Company is principally engaged in construction service and its registered address is No. 1 14

Floor, TP&T Tower, Soi Vibhavadee-Rangsit 19, Vibhavadee-Rangsit Road, Kwang Jatujak, Khet Jatujak, Bangkok.

The Company’s major shareholders are Rotary Trel Pte Ltd., a company also registered under Singapore
laws and KPK 1999 Co., Ltd., a limited company under Thai laws, which as at 31 December 2006 held 30.00 and

11.67 percent of the issued and paid-up capital of the Company, respectively.

During the first quarter of the prior year, the Company and China Petroleum Pipeline Bureau jointly
established a joint venture under the name of “CPP-TRC Joint Venture”, with the Company holding 10% and
China Petroleum Pipeline Bureau holding 90%. The joint venture was set up to bid for a natural gas pipeline
construction project of PTT Public Company Limited and the joint venture subsequently won the bidding and
entered into the contract to construct a natural gas pipeline with PTT Public Company Limited on 10 August 2005.
Subsequently, on 15 November 2005, the Company and China Petroleum Pipeline Bureau jointly made a
retroactive amendment to the Joint Venture Agreement, to change the proportion in which profit and loss of the
joint venture is shared to correspond with the proportion of capital investment and financial support in the form of
providing or obtaining credit facilities for the joint venture, with that of the Company being 10% and that of China
Petroleum Pipeline Bureau being 90%. As at 31 December 2006 and 2005, the Company has not invested capital,
provided financial support, or obtained credit facilities, and expects not to invest capital, provide financial
support, or obtain credit facilities for the joint venture in the future. It therefore has not recognised the operating
results of the joint venture and has not included the financial statements of the joint venture for the consolidated

financial statements on a proportionate basis.

The Company registered with the Ministry of Commerce for the change of its status to a public company
limited under the Public Limited Company Act and also registered the change of its name from “TRC Construction

Company Limited” to “TRC Construction Public Company Limited” on 25 April 2005.

On 8 December 2005, the Security and Exchange Commission approved an initial public offering (IPO) of

the Company’s ordinary shares. The Company'’s securities will be traded in the Market for Alternative Investment.

The Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) reported that the Board of the SET has approved the listing of the
ordinary shares of TRC Construction Public Company Limited on the Market for Alternative Investment, effective

from 22 December 2005.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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During the last quarter of the current year, a meeting of the Board of Directors approved an investment in
15% of the registered and paid in share capital of Cryothai Company Limited, or a total of approximately Baht 10-
15 million, in order to operate a liquid natural gas project. Subsequently, on 17 January 2007, a meeting of the
Board of Directors passed a resolution to cancel the approved investment in that company since the Company
was unable to reach agreement with the existing shareholders of Cryothai Company Limited on significant issues

pertaining to the investment.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting standards enunciated under
the Accounting Profession Act B.E. 2547. The presentation of the financial statements has been made in
compliance with the stipulations of the Notification of the Department of Business Development dated 14

September 2001, issued under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise disclosed

in the accounting policies.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.1 Revenue recognition
Rendering of services
Service income from construction contracts is recognised on the basis of percentage of completion
based on the assessment of the project engineer, and considered the percentage of completion is arrived
at based on the proportion of actual construction costs incurred up to the end of the year to the total
anticipated construction costs. Allowance for the total anticipated loss on construction projects will be made

in the accounts as soon as the possibility of loss is ascertained.

The recognised revenues which have not yet been due as per contracts have been shown under the

caption of “Unbilled receivable” in the balance sheets.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as interest accrues based on the effective rate method.

3.2 Expense recognition
Cost of services
In determining cost of construction services, the total anticipated construction costs are attributed to
each construction projects and then recognised as cost of services in the income statements on the basis

of percentage of completion.

The recognised cost of construction which have not yet been due have been shown under the caption

of “Unbilled payable” in the balance sheets.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited 113
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3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

The actual cost of construction incurred but not yet recognised as cost of services in the income

statements has been regarded as “Construction in progress” in the balance sheets.

Construction in progress includes the cost of raw material, direct labour and other expenses incurred

for each project. Such construction in progress is valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, cash at bank, and all highly liquid investments with

an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions.

Trade accounts receivable
Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful debts is
provided for the estimated losses that may be incurred in collection of receivables. The allowance is

generally based on collection experiences and analysis of debtor aging.

Property, plant and equipment/Depreciation
Land is stated at cost. Building and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

allowance for loss on impairment of assets (if any).

Depreciation of building and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs on the straight-line

basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Building - 20 years
Leasehold improvement - 3-10 vyears
Tools and equipment - 5 vyears
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment - 5 vyears
Motor vehicles - 5 vyears

Depreciation is included in determining income.

No depreciation is provided on land.

Software and amortisation
Software is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation of software is calculated by
reference to cost on a straight-line basis over the expected future period, for which the software is expected

to generate economic benefit of 3 years.

The amortisation is included in determining income.

Related party transactions
Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by, the Company,

whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting
interest in the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, key management

personnel, directors and officers with authority in the planning and direction of the Company’s operations.

3.8 Capitalisation of interest cost
Interest cost on borrowings for use in construction of the projects, is capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets and will be ceased when the projects are completed or when the construction is suspended

until active development resumes.

3.9 Long-term leases
Leases of assets which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
financial leases. Financial leases are capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The outstanding rental obligations, net of finance charges,
are included in other long-term payables, while the interest element is charged to the income statements
over the lease period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under financial leases is depreciated

over the useful life of the asset.

3.10 Foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions are translated into Baht at the exchange rates ruling on the transaction
dates. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies outstanding at the balance sheet date are

translated into Baht at the exchange rates ruling on the balance sheet date.
Gains and losses on exchange are included in determining income.

3.11 Impairment of assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.
Where the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

3.12  Employee benefits
Salary, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund and provident fund are

recognised as expenses when incurred.

3.13 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,

and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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3.14 Income tax
Income tax is provided for in the accounts based on the taxable profits determined in accordance with

tax legislation.

3.15 Derivatives

Forward exchange contracts

Receivables and payables arising from forward exchange contracts are translated into Baht at the rates
of exchange ruling on the balance sheet. Gains and losses from the translation are included in determining
income. Premiums or discounts on forward exchange contracts are amortized on a straight-line basis over

the contract periods

3.16  Use of accounting estimates
Preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions in certain circumstances, affecting amounts

reported in these financial statements and related notes. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

4. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the years, the Company had significant business transactions with related parties, which have been
concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon in the ordinary course of businesses between the

Company and those companies. Below is a summary of those transactions.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2006 2005 Transfer Pricing Policy
Transactions with related parties
Service income 237,175
Other income -
Cost of services 3,116
Other expenses 1,284
Dividend paid 8,000

TRC Construction Public Company Limited
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The balances of the accounts as at 31 December 2006 and 2005 between the Company and those related

parties are as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
2006 2005
Trade accounts receivable - related parties
Thai Rotary Engineering Limited - 11,868,184
CPP-TRC Joint Venture - 10,697,012
- 22,565,196
Account receivable - retention from related party
CPP-TRC Joint Venture 13,087,034 -
Trade accounts payable - related parties
Thai Rotary Engineering Limited 92,094 75,181
CPP-TRC Joint Venture - 9,226,700
92,094 9,301,881
Advances received from related parties under construction contracts
Thai Rotary Engineering Limited 1,154,774 86,970
CPP-TRC Joint Venture 3,830,918 41,000,000
4,985,692 41,086,970

Directors and management’s remuneration

In 2006 the Company paid salaries meeting allowances and bonus to their directors and management
totaling Baht 16.4 million (2005: Baht 13.0 million).

5. TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The outstanding balances of trade accounts receivable as at 31 December 2006 and 2005 are aged, based

on due date, as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
2006 2005
Trade accounts receivable - related parties
Not yet due - 11,886,316
Past due
Up to 3 months - 3,770,775
3 - 6 months - 6,908,105
Total trade accounts receivable - related parties - 22,565,196
Trade accounts receivable - unrelated parties
Not yet due 64,912,085 6,180,939
Past due
Up to 3 months 85,170,574 49,994,847
3 - 6 months - 13,537,320
Over 12 months - 192,130
Total trade accounts receivable - unrelated parties 150,082,659 69,905,236
Total 150,082,659 92,470,432
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts - (192,130)
Trade accounts receivable, net 150,082,659 92,278,302
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6. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - RETENTION/ADVANCES RECEIVED FROM CUSTOMERS
UNDER CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

(Unit: Baht)
2006 2005
Amount of contract revenue recognised as revenue in the year 733,297,637 503,835,737
Aggregate amount of construction costs incurred to date 988,924,518 514,705,899
Construction costs relating to future activities recognised as assets 764,963 195,629
Adjust with the recognised profits to date 182,879,503 102,025,705

1,172,568,984 616,927,233

Sum of progress billings 1,064,470,212 546,066,361
Gross amount due from customers for contract work 108,098,772 70,860,872
Accounts receivable - retention 13,087,034 3,735,834
Advances received from customers under construction contracts 34,517,141 41,086,970

7. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

These represent saving deposit and fixed deposits pledged with the banks to secure credit facilities.

8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Unit: Baht)
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Tools and  and office Motor
Land Building  improvement equipment equipment  vehicles Total

Cost:
31 December 2005 - - 1,651,838 4,855,865 5,101,065 6,658,388 18,267,156
Additions 11,000,000 1,000,000 - 4,132,467 2,292,711 8,325,551 26,750,729
Disposals/written-off - - - (296,618) (194,639) (680,467) (1,171,724)
31 December 2006 11,000,000 1,000,000 1,651,838 8,691,714 7,199,137 14,303,472 43,846,161
Accumulated depreciation:
31 December 2005 - - 790,285 3,405,772 2,112,141 2,072,860 8,381,058
Depreciation for the year - 411 455,093 842,344 1,151,256 2,213,482 4,662,586
Depreciation on disposals - - - (118,638) (98,233)  (599,915) (816,786)
written-off
31 December 2006 - 411 1,245378 4,129,478 3,165,164 3,686,427 12,226,858
Net book value:
31 December 2005 - - 861,553 1,450,093 2,988,924 4,585,528 9,886,098
31 December 2006 11,000,000 999,589 406,460 4,562,236 4,033,973 10,617,045 31,619,303
Depreciation for the year
2005 (Baht 0.9 million included in cost of services, and the balance in administrative expenses) 2,498,143
2006 (Baht 2.0 million included in cost of services, and the balance in administrative expenses) 4,662,586
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As at 31 December 2006, certain equipment items have been fully depreciated but are still in use. The original cost of

those assets amounted to approximately Baht 4.9 million (2005: Baht 2.6 million).

As at 31 December 2006, the Company has motor vehicles acquired under hire purchase and financial lease

agreements, with net book value amounting to approximately Baht 10.6 million.

9. SOFTWARE
(Unit: Baht)
2006 2005
Software 497,000 497,000
Accumulated amortisation (397,764) (232,441)
Net 99,236 264,559
Amortisation expenses included in the income statements for the year 165,323 165,323
10. SHORT-TERM LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Short-term loans from financial institutions as at 31 December 2006 and 2005 consist of:-
(Unit: Baht)
Interest rate (percent per annum)
2006 2005 2006 2005
Loans from bank - trust receipts - 7.70 - 14,245,331
Loans from bank - promissory notes 7.50 - 19,929,600 -
Total 19,929,600 14,245,331

Short-term loans from financial institutions, have been guaranteed by the related company and the pledge

of the Company’s fixed deposits.

11. LIABILITIES UNDER HIRE PURCHASE AND FINANCIAL LEASE AGREEMENTS

(Unit : Baht)
2006 2005
Liabilities under hire purchase and financial lease agreements 7,653,699 3,390,049
Less: Deferred interest expenses (495,360) (274,404)
Total 7,158,339 3,115,645
Less: Portion due within one year (2,608,683) (835,356)
Liabilities under hire purchase and financial lease agreements - net of current portion 4,549,656 2,280,289
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12.

13.

SHARE CAPITAL
On 8 April 2005, a resolution of an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company’s shareholders authorised

the following transactions: -

- To change the status of the Company to be a public company limited.

- To change the par value of the Company’s shares from Baht 100 per share to Baht 1 per share, such that
the Company’s share capital of Baht 100 million would comprise 100 million shares of Baht 1 each.

- To increase the Company'’s registered share capital from Baht 100 million to Baht 120 million through the
issue of 20 million ordinary shares, with a par value of Baht 1 each.

- To list the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

The Company registered the change in the par value of the Company’s ordinary share from Baht 100 per
share to Baht 1 per share, and the increase of its registered share capital to Baht 120 million with the Ministry of

Commerce on 25 April 2005.

Subsequently, on 10 August 2005, the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company’s shareholders
passed a resolution approving the reduction of the Company’s registered share capital from Baht 120 million to
Baht 100 million through the cancellation of 20 million registered ordinary shares of Baht 1 each which have not
been paid up. The meeting also passed a resolution approving an increase in the registered share capital of the
Company from Baht 100 million (subsequent to the reduction of registered share capital) to Baht 154.5 million
through the issue of 54.5 million ordinary shares of Baht 1 each, and approved the allotment of the increased share
capital as follows: -

1. 20 million shares were allotted to the Company’s existing shareholders at the offer price of Baht 1.147
per share.
2. 30 million shares were allotted for public offering.

3. 4.5 million shares were allotted for the exercise of green shoe option by the under writer.

In September 2005, the Company received share subscription price of the allotted 20 million ordinary shares
from existing shareholders and the Company registered the changes in its share capital with the Ministry of
Commerce on 8 September 2005. Total share proceeds from shares allotted to the Company’s existing sharehold-

ers were Baht 22.94 million with the share premium of Baht 2.94 million.

The Company received the additional share subscription from the public offering of ordinary shares in
December 2005 and registered the increase in paid-up capital to Baht 150 million with the Ministry of Commerce
on 19 December 2005. Total share proceeds were Baht 51 million with the share premium of Baht 21 million and

share issued costs approximately by Baht 1.79 million were offset against this share premium.

STATUTORY RESERVE

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to set aside
to a statutory reserve at least 5 percent of its net income after deducting accumulated deficit brought forward
(if any), until the reserve reaches 10 percent of the registered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for

dividend distribution.

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited
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14. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED COSTS

2006 2005
Number of employees at end of year (persons) 360 304
Employee costs for the year (Thousand Baht) 111,641 65,453

15.

16.

17.

18.

CORPORATE INCOME TAX
Corporate income tax for the year 2005 was calculated at the rate of 30 percent on the net income before

income tax for the year, after adding back certain expenses which are disallowable for tax computation purposes.

In 2006, the Company calculated income tax using a 20% tax rate because Royal Decree N0.387 B.E. 2544,
dated 5 September 2001, grants companies listed on the Market for Alternative Investment a reduction in the
corporate income tax rate from 30% to 20% for taxable profit for five consecutive accounting periods beginning
on or after the date of which companies listed on the Market for Alternative Investment in accordance with

securities and exchange laws.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income for the year by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Company’s operations involve a single business segment, the construction service business, and are
carried on in the single geographic area of Thailand. As a result, all of revenues, operating income and assets as

reflected in these financial statements pertain to the aforementioned business segment and geographic area.

PROVIDENT FUND

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance with the Provident
Fund Act B.E. 2530. Both employees and the Company contributed to the fund monthly at the rate of 3 - 7 percent
of basic salary. The fund, which is managed by TISCO Asset Management Company Limited, will be paid to
employees upon termination in accordance with the fund rules. During the year 2006, the Company contributed

Baht 0.8 million (2005: Baht 0.3 million) to the fund.

19. DIVIDENDS
(Unit: Baht)
Dividends Approved by Total dividends Dividend per share
Final dividends for 2005 Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders on 26 April 2006. 15,000,000 0.10
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20. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
20.1 Subcontracted work commitments
As at 31 December 2006, the Company has the outstanding commitments of Baht 14.9 million in

respect of subcontracted work.

20.2 Operating lease commitments
The Company has entered into several lease agreements in respect of the lease of land, office building
space and equipment.

Future minimum rentals payable under these leases as at 31 December 2006 are as follows:

Payable within: Million Baht
1 year 1.64
2 1o 5 years 0.38

20.3 Guarantees
As at 31 December 2006, the Company has outstanding bank guarantees of approximately Baht 198.2
million and USD 0.6 million issued by the banks on behalf of the Company in respect of certain performance

bonds as required in the normal course of business.

21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
21.1 Financial risk management
The Company'’s financial instruments, as defined under Thai Accounting Standard No. 48 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosure and Presentations”, principally comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade accounts
receivable, unbilled receivable, accounts receivable - retention, restricted bank deposits, short-term loans,
trade accounts payable, unbilled payable and liabilities under hire purchase and financial lease
agreements. The financial risks associated with these financial instruments and how they are managed is

described below.

Credit risk
The Company is exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to trade accounts receivable and unbilled
receivable. The Company manages the risk by adopting appropriate credit control policies and procedures
and therefore does not expect to incur material financial losses. The maximum exposure to credit risk is
limited to the carrying amounts of trade accounts receivables and unbilled receivable as stated in the

balance sheet.

Interest rate risk
The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its cash at banks, short-term loans and
liabilities under hire purchase and financial lease agreements. However, since most of the Company’s
financial assets and liabilities bear floating interest rates or fixed interest rates which are close to the market

rate, the interest rate risk is expected to be minimal.
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Significant financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2006 classified by type of interest rates are
summarized in the table below, with those financial assets and liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further

classified based on the maturity date, or the repricing date if this occurs before the maturity date.

Fixed interest rates

Within Floating Non- interest Average
1 year 1-5 years interest rate bearing Total interest rate
(Baht) (% p.a.)
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 39,365,976 128,173 39,494,149 0.50 - 1.00
Trade accounts receivable - - - 150,082,659 150,082,659 -
Unbilled receivable - - - 108,098,772 108,098,772 -
Accounts receivable - retention - - - 13,087,034 13,087,034 -
Restricted bank deposits 33,862,061 - 17,515,472 - 51,377,533 1.00 - 4.00
33,862,061 - 56,881,448 271,396,638 362,140,147
Financial liabilities
Short-term loans from financial 19,929,600 - - - 19,929,600 7.50
institutions
Trade accounts payable - - - 62,156,517 62,156,517 -
Unbilled payable - - - 3,869,599 3,869,599 -
Liabilities under hire purchase and
financial lease agreements - 5,415,051 - 1,743,288 7,158,339 2.90 - 4.00
19,929,600 5,415,051 - 67,769,404 93,114,055

Foreign currency risk
The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises mainly from buying and services transactions
that are denominated in foreign currencies. The Company seeks to reduce this risk by entering into forward
exchange contracts when it considers appropriate. Generally, the forward exchange contracts mature within

one year.

The balances of financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at 31 December

2006 are summarised below.

Financial Financial Average exchange rate
Foreign currency assets liabilities as at 31 December 2006
(Million) (Million) (Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)
US dollar 0.51 0.15 36.0932
Euro - 0.40 47.4592

TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited 133




a o

o U7 31 GWNAN 2549 UTENHH TN daenuGua TR U IAR M AVINA AT

naLin Fwndide SRuantUaenay ‘”tyfywa\jaﬁmm?iﬁwa
(@) (UIMABNAIELEUASIA U SENA)
WSBE NSFLNEMN 0.11 36.51 - 37.40
gls 0.16 48.53 - 49.00

212 yamgdsssuuovinSoviomomsiou
Waean “unswduazni - unensiin wlnazasuidnednaglulszionsre: v uazidnsnanide
Tnawdaviuansmanidalunain U%ﬁwﬁwﬁ:mmaﬂamqﬁﬁﬁmaw°uw%wﬂua:mﬁ°um\jﬂm\‘ﬁu‘lﬂﬁlﬁm\j

rugarmlydnu pulusuma

Haﬂ'wﬁﬁi‘w nuwdv ﬁWH’JHLGHﬁQJ aua:ﬁgﬂmmna\]LLamuﬁuu“uw%wa’ﬁulmm:ﬁﬁ\j ANARIIEY
mwmaui waztfnlalunisuanidewunas 1w1safasausIAiwleag 1 dud sEludnwmeildiniin

| o

\Aendaurin ﬁﬁmiﬁmumdav»hqﬁﬁiiuﬁuagﬁuﬁnwmzﬂa\jLﬂ%a\ﬂﬁam\jnmﬁu gjamamﬁﬁﬁm:ﬁmummn

]

SIAIRAIAAT 17 m%aﬁmuﬂﬁu‘[ma’l,?‘]’mmﬁmﬁmgjamﬁmm: N

22. msbaus:innsieimsiubumsidu
IgfinsdaUsznnemsvdlueumstin “msul qﬂ’j’%‘ﬁ 31 $unAw 2548 Tvsiiialyl aardauiuns

dnuszimensdtyBeautiagin fulifinanszvunails nivia wsaudiaviumuinlaisieenuluud

23. msoyudopumsIidu

\mm‘iLﬁuﬁlﬁﬁua%ﬁﬁ'lﬁaanTmUnﬁumiéﬁﬁwmwa\m%ﬁmLﬁa"mﬁ 23 NNNTLE 2550

134

USUN NoNSB AoU. ASABU D110 (UMBU)



Forward exchange contracts outstanding as at 31 December 2006 are summarized below.

Foreign currency Bought amount Contractual exchange rate of bought
(Million) (Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)

US dollar 0.11 36.51 - 37.40

Euro 0.16 48.53 - 49.00

21.2 Fair values of financial instruments
Since the majority of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities are short-term in nature and interest
rates which are close to the market rate, their fair value is not expected to be materially different from the

amounts presented in the balance sheets.

A fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged or a liability settled between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The fair value is determined by reference to the
market price of the financial instrument or by using an appropriate valuation technique, depending on the

nature of the instrument.

22. RECLASSIFICATION
Certain amounts in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2005 have been reclassified to
conform to the current year’s classifications, with no effect on previously reported net income or shareholders’

equity.

23. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s authorised directors on 23

February 2007.
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Details of the Company’s Management and Control Persons as of December 31, 2006

Shareholding Working Experience
Name/ Position Education in the Relationship
Company (%)
Mrs. Paichit Rattananon 51  Bachelor of Political 30.00
Chairman and Authorized Science, Ramkhamhaeng Directly and
Director University indirectly
holds the

Thailand National Defense shares through

College: TNDC 48 KPK 1999
Co., Ltd.
Director Accreditation which Mrs.
Program (DAP) 38/2005, Paichit holds
Thai Institute of Director 99.99% of its

Association shares

Mr. Narindr Vangsrivadhanagul 57  Master of Business 1.75
Chairman of the Executive Administration, SASIN
Committee and Authorized Graduate School
Director
Bachelor of Laws,

Chulalongkorn University

Director Accreditation Program
(DAP) 36/2005, Thai Institute

of Director Association
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Name/ Position

Mr. Paitoon Goserakwong
President and

Authorized Director

Shareholding
Education in the

Company (%)

Master of Arts in Industrial
Management, Northern

lllinois University, U.S.A.

Bachelor of Chemical
Engineering, Chulalongkorn

University

Director Accreditation Program
(DAP) 26/2004 and Director
Certification Program (DCP)
53/2005, Thai Institute of

Director Association

Mr. Loh Eng Kee
Director and
Authorized Director

Technical Diploma in
Mechanical Engineering,
Singapore Polytechnic

Has not yet to enroll for the
Director Accreditation Program

(DAP) as Mr. Loh Eng Kee

was not in Thailand during

the period when the English

course was held.
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Name/ Position

Ms. Jongkolnee Tansuvan

Director and Authorized Director

Shareholding
Education in the

Company (%)

42 Master of Arts in Accounting,

Thammasat University

Director Accreditation Program
(DAP) 35/2005, Thai Institute

of Director Association

Mr. Tan Teck Seng

Director

Bachelor of Mechanical
Engineering, Liverpool

University, UK.

Has not yet to enroll for the
Director Accreditation Program
(DAP) as Mr. Tan Teck Seng

was not in Thailand during

the period when the English

course was held.

Relationship

Working Experience
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Name/ Position

Assoc. Prof. Kamjorn
Tatiyakavee, MD.
Director and the Chairman

of Audit Committee

Shareholding
Education in the

Company (%)

Bachelor of Medicine,

Chulalongkorn University

Diploma of Pediatrics,

Chulalongkorn University

Director Accreditation Program
(DAP) 35/2005, Thai Institute

of Director Association

Assoc. Prof. Pises Sethsathira

Director and Audit Committee

50

Master of Laws (LL.M),

Columbia University, U.S.A.

Director Accreditation Program
(DAP) 35/2005, Thai Institute

of Director Association

Relationship

Working Experience
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Name/ Position

Assoc. Prof. Aekkachai
Nittayagasetwat, PH.D., FRM.

Director and Audit Committee

Shareholding
Education in the

Company (%)

43 PH.D. in Finance,

University of Mississippi, U.S.A.

Financial Risk Manager: FRM®

Global Association of Risk

Professionals (GARP)

Director Accreditation Program
(DAP) 35/2005, Thai Institute

of Director Association

Mr. James Jordan Fleming
Vice President of Engineering,
Marketing & Operation

Department

University Entrance Certificate
Secondary School,

New Zealand

Filter Welder Certificate and

First Class Welder

Relationship

Working Experience
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Name/ Position

Mr. Peerasak Sukpenkaew
Vice President of Business
Development Department

Shareholding
Education in the Relationship
Company (%)

Bachelor of Science,
Chulalongkorn University

Bachelor of Veterinary
Science, Chulalongkorn
University

Mr. Sakda Tantivathanakul
Assistant Vice President of
Engineering & Marketing
Division

Bachelor of Engineering,
Chiang Mai University

Mr. Chaveng Reesrikitti
Assistant Vice President of
Operation Division

Bachelor of Engineering,
Chiang Mai University

Ms. Ounruen Sujarittham
Finance Manager and Secretary
to the Board of Directors

Master in Finance,
National Institute of
Development Administration

Ms. Rewadee Ardharn

Accounting Manager

Master of Business Administration
Eastern Asia University

Working Experience
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